Tel: 02 9921 2999 AGL Energy Limited

Fax: 02 9921 2552 ABN 74 115 061 375

St Leonards Locked Bag 1837

72 Christie Street ST LEONARDS NSW 2065
St Leonards NSW 2065 www.aql .3

AL

30 September 2007 \ 07027 424

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission,
Division of Corporation Finance,

100 F. Street, N.W.,

Washington, D.C. 20549.

Re: AGL Energy Limited -- Rule 12g3-2(b) Exemption A
File No. 82-35037 SU ]

Dear Sir/Madam

The enclosed information is being furnished by AGL Energy Limited
(“AGL”) under paragraph (b)(1)(i) of Rule 12g3-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (the “Exchange Act”).

In accordance with paragraphs (b)(4) and {(b)(5) of the Rule, the documents
furnished herewith are being furnished with the understanding that such documents will
not be deemed “filed” with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission or otherwise
subject to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, and that neither this letter nor
the furnishing of such documents shall constitute an admission for any purpose that AGL
1s subject to the Exchange Act.

Yours faithful

7

Paul McWilliams

Company Secretary % OC T e




Issues Raised and Reported to the ASX

Period 01 September 2007 — 30 September 2007 (inclusive)

03/09/2007 AGL announces new General Manager of Retail
10/09/2007 North America and UK Conference Presentation
24/09/2007 AGL Energy receives proposed price for AlintaAGL
25/09/2007 Appendix 3Y Mark Johnson

25/09/2007 Appendix 3Y Jeremy Maycock

25/09/2007 Appendix 3Y Maxwell Quld

25/09/2007 Appendix 3Y Graham Reaney

27/09/2007 ASX Statement

27/09/2007 AGL Concise Annual Report 2007

27/09/2007 AGL Full Annual Report 2007

27/09/2007 AGL Notice of AGM 2007

27/09/2007 AGL Proxy Appointment Form 2007 AGM




ASX

SECLIUTES ASX Limited

Facsimile it P ABN 98 008 624 691

20 Bridge Street
To Company Seccretary Sydney NSW 2000
Company AGL ENERGY LIMITED
Fax number 0299212552 PO Box H224

— Australia Square

From ASX Limited - Company Announcements Office NSW 1215
Date 03-Sep-2007 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Time 10:56:45 WWW.ASX.com.au
Subject Confirmation Of Receipt And Release Of Announcement

DX 10427 Stock Exchange
Number of pages 1 only Sydney
MESSAGE:

We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

AGL announces new General Manager of Retail

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classifiad by ASX as sensitive, your company's securities will be placad into “pre-open” status on ASX's trading system. This means that
trading in your company's securities is temporarlly stopped, to aflow the market time to assess tha cantents of your anncuncement. “Pre-open” is approximately
10 minutes for most announcements but can ba 50 minutes (approximatsly) for tak eover announcements.

Once “pre-open” pariod is completed, full trading of the company's securities recommencas,
PLEASE NOTE:

In accordanca with Guidance Nots 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using ASX Onlins.
Fax is availabls for emargency purposas and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use is 1900 999273,




AGL Energy Limited Tel: +61 2 9921 2999

ABN 74 115 061 375 Fax: +61 2 9921 2552
A%y
72 Christie Street Locked Bag 1837 A
St Leonards, 2065 NSW St Leonards, 2065 NSW AUSTRALIA
AUSTRALIA www.agl.com.au

ocr 9 2007
asx & media release

Monday, September 3, 2007

AGL announces new General Manager of
Retail |

Australia’s largest integrated energy company AGL Energy Limited (AGL) today announced the
appointment of Greg Conway as General Manager of Retail Businesses.

Mr Conway will be responsible for AGL’s growing residential, small and medium enterprises and
smaller industrial customer base. AGL has more than 4.1 million customers across Australia.

Mr Conway was most recently Client Executive of Financial Services, Strategic, Commercial and
Globa! Accounts within Australia for major global IT outsourcing company EDS. He has worked in a
number of senior executive roles in Banking and Investment Banking and was previously Chief
Operating Officer Group Operations of Westpac.

AGL Managing Director Paul Anthony said Mr Conway brought a weaith of skills in modern customer
development, operations and retention from the banking and IT services industries.

“As the energy market evolves and matures, it requires greater focus and transferable skills from
other markets that have undergone similar deregulation,” Mr Anthony said.

“We are particularly interested in the progressive development of customer support and retention
techniques deployed in the global retait banking markets.

“We rnade a conscious effort to seek a new leader for our retail businesses who possesses such
skills.

“Greg has a demonstrable track record of delivering profitable change in the retail banking sector.”

Mr Ccnway said: “The primary drivers of value creation in financial services mass markets and the
energy sector are very comparable.

"Both industries need to deliver business cutcomes that lower the cost to serve and provide
excellence in customer service through improved processes, technology and skilled people.

"I am very pleased to be joining AGL and be entrusted with the opportunity to contribute toward
achieving such outcomes.”

Ends

Further enquiries:

Media Analysts & Investors

Matthew Horan Graeme Thompson, Head of Investor Relations
Direct: + 61 2 9360 6606 Direct: + 61 2 9921 2789

Mobite: + 61 (0) 403 934 958 Mobile: + 61 (0) 412 020 711

e-mail: mhoran@catocounsel.com.au e-mail: gthompson@agl.com.au




AGL is Australia’s leading energy provider and the only energy producer with a full suite of renewable generation, providing
gas and electricity to more than six million Australians,

AGL is a world-class integrated energy company, with major investments in the supply of gas and electricity, as well as a
substantia! base of customers across Australia.

AGL is committed to leading Australia in minimising the effects of climate change, investing in sustainable energy businesses
such as wind farms and innovative environmentaily friendly projects such as the underground Bogong hydroelectric power
station in Victoria's High Country.

Listed on the Australian Securities Exchange {(ASX code: AGK), AGL is an S&P/ASX 50 company with a market capitalisation
of about A$7bHlion. AGL has a heritage of 170 years of operations as an energy provider in Australia.

AGL rmaintains a BBB investment grade credit rating from Standard & Poor’s.




ASX

ASX Limited
Facsimile HUSTRALAN SECIRITES prcuaNGe ABN 98 008 624 €91
20 Bridge Street
To Company Secretary Sydney NSW 2000
Company AGL ENERGY LIMITED
Fax number 0299212552 PO Box H224
— Australia Square
From ASX Limited — Company Announcements Office NSW 1215
Date 10-Sep-2007 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Time 14:48:43 WWW.asx.com.au
Subject Confirmation Of Receipt And Release Of Announcement
DX 10427 Stock Exchange
Number of pages 1 only Sydney
MESSAGE:

We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding;

North America and UK Investor Conference Presentation
-

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be haited for 10 minutes.

i your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company's securities will be placed into “pre-opan” status on ASX's trading system. This means that
trading in your company's securitias is temporarily stopped, to allow the market tima to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approximately
10 minutes for most announcemants but can ba 50 mimrtas (approximately) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-cpen” period is completed, full trading of the company’s saturites recommences.
PLEASE NOTE:

in accordance with Guidance Nats 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge anneuncements using ASX Onfine.
Fax is availabte for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (ined. GST). Tha enly fax number to use is 1900 993 279.
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ASX

Facsimi'e AUSTRALLAN SECURITIES FXCHANGE

To Company Secretary

Company AGL ENERGY LIMITED

Fax number 0299212552

From ASX Limited — Company Announcements Office

Date 24-Sep-2007

Time 10:08:05

Subject Confirmation Of Receipt And Release Of Announcement

Number of pages 1 only

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding;

AGL Energy receives proposed price for AlintaAGL

ASX Limited

ABN 98 008 624 691
20 Bridge Street
Sydney NSW 2000

PO Box H224
Australia Square
NSW 1215

Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
WWw.asx.com.au

DX 10427 Stock Exchange
Sydney

[f ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will ba halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classifiad by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into "pre-open™ status on ASX's trading system. This means that
trading in your company's securities is temp orarily stopped, to allow the market tima to assess the contents of your announcement. "Pro-open” is approximately

10 minutes for most announéamants but can be 50 minutes {approximately) for takeaver snnouncements.
Onca "pre-open” pericd is completed, full rading of the company’s securitiss recommences.
PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, itis mandatory to elodgs announcements using ASX Onfns.
Fax is available for emargency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incd GST). The only fax number to use is 1300 999 279.




—

AGL Centre, 72 Christie Street Locked Bag 1837
St Leonards, 2065 St Leonards, 2065

www.agl.com.au

asx and media release

24 September 2007

AGL Energy receives proposed price for
AlintaAGL

AGL Energy Limited (AGL) has received notice from Alinta 2000 Limited (Alinta) of the optior:
exercise price at which Alinta is prepared to sell its 67 per cent interest in AlintaAGL Pty Ltd to AGL.

The price proposal was received on 21 September under the terms of the Subscription and Call
Nption Deed between Alinta and AGL, agreed in August last year during the companies’ merger and
ibsequent demerger,

The agreement gave AGL the option to either move to 100 per cent ownership of AlintaAGL, or sell
its 33 per cent interest at a pro-rata price, in the event of a change in control of Alinta. Alinta was
acquired by Babcock & Brown last month,

AlintaAGL. owns the Western Australian retail business formerly owned by Alinta as well as
generation assets at Alcoa’s Pinjarra and Wagerup alumina refineries.

AGL has three months to consider the proposal and will advise the market when it notifies Alinta of
its decision.

Ends.

Further enquiries:

Media Analysts & Investors

Matthew Horan Stephen Mikkelsen, Chief Financial Officer
Direct: + 61 2 9360 6606 Direct: + 61 2 9921 2777

“‘obile: + 61 (0) 403 934 958 Mobile: + 61 (0) 407408874

<-mail: matthew®catocounsel.com.au e-mail; smikkelsen@agl.com.au
About AGL

AGL is Australia‘s leading integrated energy company. Drawing on 170 years of experience, it includes retail
and merchant energy businesses, power generation assets and an upstream gas portfolio. AGL has Australia's
largest retail energy and dual fuel customer base supplying around 4.1 millien customer accounts. This includes
customers supplied with gas and electricity through AGL's joint venture partnerships, ActewAGL and AlintaAGL.
AGL has a diverse power generation portfolio including base, peaking and intermediate generation plants,
spread across traditional thermal generation as well as renewable sources including hydro, wind, fandfill gas
and biomass. One of Australia’s largest renewable energy producers, AGL is looking to further expand this
position by exploring a suite of low emission and renewable energy generation development opportunities.




ASX

ASX Limited
Facsimile STIALAN SECUBIES et ABN 98 008 624 691
To Company Secretary ggdir:;gﬁssvt\rre ;éOO
Company AGL ENERGY LIMITED
PO Box H224
Fax number 0296212552 Australia muare
From ASX Limited — Company Announcements Office NSW 1215
Date 23-Sep-2007 Telephone 612 9227 0334
Time 14:22:52 WWW.asx.com.au
Subject Confirmation Of Receipt And Release Of Announcement
DX 10427 Stock Exchange
Number of pages 1 only Sydney
MESSAGE:

We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Appendix 3Y Mark Johnson

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading wil? bs halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as senstive, your company's securities will be placed into “pre-open” status on ASX's trading system. This means that
trading in your company's securities is temporarily siopped, to aliow the market ime to assass the contents of your amnouncament. “Pre-open” s approximately
10 minutes for most anouncements but can be 50 minutes (approximately) for takeover announcements,

Once “pre-open” pariod is completed, Ll rading of the compary’s securities racommences.
PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory b 2lodge announcements using ASX Onfne.
Fax is available for emergency pupeses and costs AS39.50 (ncl. GST). The only fax number to use is 1300 999 279.




Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Rule 3.194.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and
documents given to ASX become ASX's property and may be made pubiic.

Introduced 30/9/2001.

Name of entity AGL ENERGY LIMITED

ABN 74 115 061 375

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the
director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director MARK RODERICK GRANGER JOHNSON

Date of last notice 20 JUNE 2007

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
In the case of a trust. this includes interests in the trust made available by the responsibie entity of the trust

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a director” should be
disclosed in this part,

Direct or indirect interest DIRECT

Nature of indirect interest

(including registered holder)
Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise to the relevant

interest,

Date of change 25 SEPTEMBER 2007
No. of securities held prior to change 210,068

Class ORDINARY

Number acquired 8,647

Number disposed

Value/Consideration $15.77

Notwe: Il consideration i3 non-cash, provide details and estimated
valuation

No. of securities held after change 218,715

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
Page 1



Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Nature of change AGL SHARE PURCHASE PLAN

Example: on-market trade, off-market trade, exercise of options, issue of
securities under dividend reinvestment plan, participation in buy-back

Part 2 — Change of director’s interests in contracts

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (ii) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a director” should be
disclosed in this part.

Detail of contract

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities to
which interest related prior to

change
Note: Details are only required for a contract in relation
10 which the intcrest has changed

Interest acquired

Interest disposed

Value/Consideration
Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and
an estimated valuation

Interest after change

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
Page 2



ASX

ASX Limited
Facsimile AATRALIAN SECUIIIES rchAtet ABN 98 008 624 691
20 Bridge Street
To Company Secretary SydneygNSW 2000
Company AGL ENERGY LIMITED
PO Box H224
Fax number 0299212552 Australia Square
From ASX Limited - Company Announcements Office NSW 1215
Date 25-Sep-2007 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Time 14:23:44 WWw.asx.com.au
Subject i i Rell Of Ann t
ubjec Confirmation Of Receipt And Release ouncemen DX 10427 Stock Exchange
Number of pages 1 only Sydney
MESSAGE:

We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Appendix 3Y Jeremy Maycock

(FASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will ba halted for 19 minutes.

If your announcement is cissified by ASX as sensiive, your company’s secuiities will be placed info “pre-open” status on ASYs trading system. This means hat
trading in your company’s securties is temporarily stopped, to allow the market ime to assess the contants of your amouncement "Pre-open” is approximately
10 minutes for most announcements but can be 50 minutes (approximately} for Bikeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” parind is completed, iiifl trading of the company's securities recommences.
PLEASE NOTE:

In accomdance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, itis mandatory b elodge announcements using ASX Online,
Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$33.50 (ncl GST). The only fax number to use is 1800 999 278,




Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Rule 3.194.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now must be given 1o ASX as soon as available. Information and
documents given to ASX become ASX's property and may be made public.

Intreduced 30792001

[Name of entity AGL ENERGY LIMITED

ABN 74 115 061 375

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the
director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director JEREMY CHARLES ROY MAYCOCK

Date of last notice 20 JUNE 2007

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
In the case of a trust, this includes interests in the trust made available by the responsible entity of the irusit

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a director” should be
disclosed in this parn.

Direct or indirect interest DIRECT

Nature of indirect interest
(including registered holder)

Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise to the relevant
interest.

Date of change 25 SEPTEMBER 2007

No. of securities held prior to change DIRECT - 640
INDIRECT - 15,741

Class ORDINARY

Number acquired 2,004

Number disposed

Value/Consideration $15.77

Note: If comsideration is non-cash, provide dewstls and estimated

vatuation

No. of securities held after change DIRECT - 2,644

BROOKFIELD SUPERANNUATION
PTY LTD (As trustee for Brookfield
Super Fund A/C) - 6,041

JCR & EJ MAYCOCK FAMILY TRUST
- 9,700

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
Page |




Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Nature of change AGL SHARE PURCHASE PLAN

Example: on-market trade, off-market trade, exercise of options, issue of
securities under dividend reinvestment plan, participation in buy-back

Part 2 — Change of director’s interests in contracts

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (ii) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a director” should be
disclosed in this part.

Detail of contract

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities to
which interest related prior to

change
Note: Details are only required for a contract in relation
to which the interest has changed

Interest acquired

Interest dispoesed

Value/Consideration
Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and
an estimated valuation

Interest after change

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
Page 2



ASX

ASX Limited
Facsimile STIALI SECTIES Pt ABN 98 008 624 691
20 Bridge Street
To Company Secretary Sydney NSW 2000
Company AGL ENERGY LIMITED
PO Box H224
Fax number 0299212552 Australia Square
From ASX Limited — Company Announcements Office NSW 1215
Date 23-Sep-2007 Telephone 612 9227 0334
Time 14:24:58 Www.asx.com.au
Subject Confirmation Of Receipt And Release Of Announcement
ogee onirma fon coep © a DX 10427 Stock Exchange
Nurnber of pages 1 only Sydney
MESSAGE:

We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding;

Appendix 3Y Maxwell Ould

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is clissified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed il “pre-open” status on ASX's trading system. This means that
trading in your compary's securties is temporanily stopped, 1o aliow the market ime b assess he contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approximately
10 minutes for most announcements but ¢an be 50 minutes (approximately) for tkeover ennouncements.

Once "pre-open” period is completed, il rading of the company’s securities recommences.
PLEASE NOTE:

In accomdance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, # is mandatory b elodge announcements usig ASX Onine.
Fax is available for emergency purpeses and casts A$38.50 (ncl. GST). The only Fax numb er to use is 1900 999278,




Appendix 3Y
Change of Directer’s Interest Notice

Rule 3.194.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and
documentis given to ASX become ASX’s property and may be made public.

[ntroduced 30/9/2001.

Name of entity AGL ENERGY LIMITED

ABN 74 115 061 375

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the
director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director MAXWELL GILBERT OULD

Date of last notice 29 AUGUST 2007

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
In the case of a trust, this includes interests in the trust made available by the responsible entity of the trust

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a director” should be
disclosed in this part,

Direct or indirect interest DIRECT

Nature of indirect interest
(inciuding registered holder)

Note: Provide detsils of the circumstances giving rise to the relevant
interest.

Date of change 25 SEPTEMBER 2007

No. of securities held prior to change DIRECT - 12,944
INDIRECT - 5,000

Class ORDINARY

Number acquired 1,250

Number disposed

Value/Consideration $15.77

Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and estimated

valuation

No. of securities held after change DIRECT - 14,194

INDIRECT - 5,000

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
Page |




Appendix 3Y _
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Nature of change AGL SHARE PURCHASE PLAN

Example: on-market trade, off-market trade, exercise of pptions, issue of
securitics under dividend reinvestment plan, participation in buy-back

Part 2 — Change of director’s interests in contracts

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of "natifiable interest of a director” should be
disclosed in this part.

Detail of contract

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities to
which interest related prior to

change
Note: Details are only required for a comract in relation
to which the interest has changed

Interest acquired

Interest disposed

Value/Consideration
Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and
an estimated valuntion

Interest after change

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
Page 2



ASX

ASX Limited
Facsimile ASSTRALIAN SECITIES Prenmt ABN 98 008 624 691
20 Bridge Street
To Company Secretary Sydne'ygNSW 2000
Company AGL ENERGY LIMITED
PO Box H224
Fax number 0299212552 Austratia Square
From ASX Limited - Company Announcements Office NSW 1215
Date 25-Scp-2007 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Time 14:25:10 wWww.asx.com.au
Subject Confmmation Of Receipt And Release Of Announcement
DX 10427 Stock Exchange
Number of pages 1 only Sydney
MESSAGE:

We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Appendix 3Y Graham Reaney

I ASX consldars an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classfied by ASX as sensiive, your company’s securities willbe placed intp “pre-open” status on ASX's trading system, This means tat
trading in your comparry’s securiies is temporarily stopped, to aflow the market fme ¥ assess the contents of your amouncement “Pre-open” is approximately
10 minutes bor mest amouncemerts but can be 50 minutes {approdmate ) for Bkeover announcemants.

Once “pre-opan™ period is completad, frfl trading of the company’s securities recommencas.
PLEASE NOTE:

In accortance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory b elodge announcements using ASX Online.
Fax is avaliable for emergency puposes and costs A$38.50 {ncl, GST)., The only fax number to use is 1900 999 279.




Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Rule 3.194.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and
documents given to ASX become ASX's property and may be made public.

Introduced 30:9/2001,
Name of entity AGL ENERGY LIMITED
ABN 74 115 061 375

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the
director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director GRAHAM JOHN REANEY

Date of last notice 20 JUNE 2007

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
In the case of a trust, this includes interests in the trust made available by the responsible entity of the trust

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definitien of “notifiable interest of a director” should be
disclosed in this part.

Direct or indirect interest DIRECT
Nature of indirect interest
(including registered holder)
Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise to the relevant
interest.
Date of change 25 SEPTEMBER 2007
No. of securities held prior to change DIRECT - 62,906
INDIRECT - 30,000
Class ORDINARY
Number acquired 1,711
Number disposed
Value/Consideration $15.77
Note: If comsideration is non-cash, provide details and estimated
valuation
No. of securities held after change DIRECT - 64,617
G ] REANEY FAMILY TRUST -
10,000
RENILTON PTY LTD - 20,000

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
Page |




Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Nature of change AGL SHARE PURCHASE PLAN

Example: on-market trade, off-market trmde, exercise of options, issue of
securities under dividend reinvestment plan, panticipation in buy-back

Part 2 — Change of director’s interests in contracts

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (if) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a director” should be
disclosed in this part,

Detail of contract

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities to
which interest related prior to

change
Note: Details are only required for a contract in relation
to which the interest has changed

Interest acquired

Interest disposed

Value/Consideration
Neote: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and
an estimated valuation

Interest after change

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
Page 2



ASX

ASX Limited
Facsimile AT PicnNE ABN 98 008 624 691
20 Bridge Street
To Company Secretary Sydney NSW 2000
Company AGL ENERGY LIMITED
Fax number 0299212552 PO Box H224
Australia Square
From ASX Limited - Company Announcements Office NSW 1215
Date 27-Sep-2007 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Time 08:27.24 WwW, asX.com.au
Subject Confirmation Of Receipt And Release Of Announcement
DX 10427 Stock Exchange
Number of pages 1 only Sydney
MESSAGE:

We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

ASX Statement

If ASX considers an announcement to ba sensitive, trading will be hafted for 10 minutes.

i your announcement is cfassified by ASX as sensitive, your company's securities will be placed into “pre-open” status on ASX's rading system. This means that
trading in your company's sacurities is temporarily stopped, to aliow the market time to assass the contents of your announcement. “Pre-opan” is approximately
10 minutes for mast announcemants but can b 50 minutes (approximataly) for tak sover announcemants.

Once “pre-open” pericd is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommances,
PLEASE NOTE:

In accordancs with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodgs announcements using ASX Onfins,
Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (ined. GST). Tha only fax number to usa is 1900 999 279,




AGL Centre, 72 Christie Street Locked Bag 1837
St Leonards, 2065 St Leonards, 2065
www.agi.com.au

sX statement

27 September 2007

AGL Energy Limited is about to commence dispatch of its Concise Annual Report 2007, Full
Financial Report 2007 and the Notice of Meeting in respect of the Annual General Meeting

to be held on 8 November 2007. A copy of each of these documents has been lodged with
the ASX today.

/7

Paul McWilliams
Company Secretary




ASX

- ASX Limited
Facsimile AATRAIAN SCEIRIIIES XEAmGE ABN 98 008 624 691
To Company Secretary gdarggﬁssx%
Company AGL ENERGY LIMITED
PO Box H224

Fax number 0209212552 Australia Square
From ASX Limited - Company Announcements Office NSW 1215
Date 27 Sep-2007 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Time 08:28:51 WWwW.asx.com.au
Subject Confirmation Of Receipt And Rele f Ann t

i e coeipt And Release Of Announcemen DX 10427 Stock Exchange
Number of pages 1 only Sydney
MESSAGE:

We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

AGL Cencise Annual Report 2007

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will ba halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is ¢lassfied by ASX as senshive, your company’s securities will be placed info “pre-open” status on ASX's iading system. This means that
trading in your company's securiies is tsmporarily stopped, to allow the masket tme to assass the contants of your anouncement. *Pre-open” is approximately
10 minutes for most announcements but can be 50 minutes {approximately) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, 411l trading of the company’s securities racommentes.

PLEASE NOTE:
in accomdance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it Is mandatory b elodge announcements using ASX Onfine,
Fax is avaiiahle for emergency puposes and costs AS38.50 {ncl. GST). The only fax number to use is 1900 938 279.




A breath of fresh air.

AGL Concise Annual Report 2007,




AGL Energy Limited ABN 74 115 061 375
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acted fo buy 128aMW
12::2\5 Istand LP:’;« Siation
$417 miffion on 74 Janusry 2007

devele mnl‘ﬂ”'#
f“rfs:-c;rs;mm‘r fett Wind Farme

{brown

s Gully

fue. Efm{np.'g;’S f"ﬁ;u?

Build OLD wid NSW \
P bt et

L‘n"ﬂ'ﬂ"d&m‘" Fo% increage 1, ﬂGchecfuﬂer

W - .. 7 . AL :
o ! B'“Hmmh ]
. ) P

Build Hallett vml Wind
Farm $257 milfion
15 Deceraber o0k

Expand range of emesuuiie angk 'P‘ : i ~
'"”Wmmﬂiﬂ;?f"ﬂm . l‘uhdf"'?"l’""yﬂ’mm Mimr
v Capfure {owest-cost . -~
compefitive advantage
7 Lead mc{usfry consolidation

7 Veirtical infearafion fo Mn‘igafe cost Vofaflf‘fy
and deepen access to pmﬁf pocls
7 Enhance sharcholder refum

Singfe
e P Pt i e

Yo "'"m"'P”r'"ﬁ FY 21

Devefop LNG proy
ﬁ»rPNg fm
sn 2 Jufy 2007

~ Sraanisafian;
mfmd""‘ "{ raarisaflon df
Enhance securiy and . reduce 25 wiflon p.a saving from ;Mo;’
fongentty of supply = Trapron cgirise e

cﬂMPr‘h‘i" ﬁlwm

Sg;..n Copturs conf seam meth,
yreaer .
facilties: wc?f:% ¥3 miffon Uhugﬁg

Purchase of Moran
’“Sﬂ?rful.fﬁn,. bahs 50% stake

i f {-; T
SAA 35 wiffn) in gu,.(,? :,,:,5 Purchase 27.6% stake in OGC nf? e falent pacls Mﬁ\ﬁj’.
2 March zoo7 for #3526 miffion Top Mandaers news
—= 740FT contract fa 2027 W’"""‘“ "‘"‘P(‘f“' in fin Y to0y OWHSf £ e&m

€omp fete Mr;l.rpcpe e
o

( frwparl‘-.fwu wiffion
gP Y frem 2001

— - " Acqmrd new s f E s
o | production lense in NSW f,-‘la!(
{_ eam \ 16 March zo07 Contracted 45 bty Sun G
S r plc pipefines the mss.-n, fink 75 miflion on *
27 Nevember 2004

oS
{n




Key numbers.

Group PAT: $410.5 million

Group PAT of $410.5 miillion includes the impact of
fair value adjustments and the contributions from
the Powerdirect and Sun Gas businesses acquired
during the year.

Group PAT on a pro-forma basis” would be

$319.9 million, which was in line with management’s
expectations, and consistent with projections

for the post-demerger position of AGL Energy
Limited. While the overall position was consistent
with post-demerger forecasts, there was some
variability in the component parts, particularly
Retail Energy and Merchant Businesses.

Retail Energy EBIT: $203.4 million”

Retail Energy EBIT of $203.4 million was down

on the prior-year comparative of $234.7 million.
Milder weather conditions led to volurne shortfalls
in both gas and electricity sales resulting in
decreased gross margins. Margins were also
negatively impacted by the mix of customers
with some higher margin customers being lost

to customers with lower overall margins.

R
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Merchant Businesses EBIT: $375.1 million”
Merchant Businesses EBIT of $375.1 million was up
on the prior-year comparative of $214.7 million.
Full-year contributions from Southern Hydro

and PNG combined with a very good contract
book were the main drivers of this substantial
improvement. The contribution from Loy Yang
Power also increased due to the effect of the
higher electricity pool prices.

Gas and electricity accounts - - il
We now have two mifion electricity customer : 1
accounts and two million gas customer accounts’. ;

Dual fuel accounts

Our dual fuel accounts increased by 2.8% and now I 27

stand at 1,126,920, Qur average products-per- A June
customer increased from 1.25 at Jure 2006 to yer customer |S)-£5/m

1.27 at June 2007.

*Includes 100% of joint ventures

AThe financiat key numbers excluding the Group PAT of $410.5 million are pro-forma results which detail the total group profit after
tax (PAT} and the Retail Energy and Merchant Businesses earnings before interest and tax (EBIT}, on a basis that the AGL Energy group
existed in this form for the entire 12 months to 30 June 2007. That is, regardless of the time that each legal entity became a member
of the AGL Energy group, its results have been included for the 12-month period. These results exclude the impact of fair value
adjustments, significant iterns and the Powerdirect and Sun Gas businesses acquired during the year.
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Chairman and Managing Director’s report.

Mark: This reporting period
has seen great changes to our
business and rapid progress
towards our strategic goals.
This strateqy and its execution
has been led by Paul Anthony,
our newly appointed Chief
Executive. Paul and his team
have delivered a superior
demerger outcome for AGL
and then moved on to lay the
cornerstones of a world-class
integrated energy company of

scale and financial robustness.,

Wwith this intense change
and activity in mind, it's very
pleasing to report that our
2007 results are in fine with
our previous forecasts.

Paul: We've seen AGL
successfully undertake a large
and very complex corporate
transaction. At the same time
we have implemented the
company’s new ‘four corners’
strategy. To have completed

this transformation without

a slip — given the enormity of
the task — is a remarkable feat,
and a tribute to the AGL staff
involved.

In June 2006, we embarked on
a complete overhaul of AGLs
business processes and the
redesign of its retail systems to
allow us to focus on improving
our services to customers. This
re-engineering of our business
processes will see AGL convert

its 165 legacy support systems’

processes down to a single
unified operating platform.

In doing so, AGL will deliver

a 50% reduction in full-time
employees within its retail
business. These changes will
secure reductions of 25% in the
cost of serving our customers.

With this system due to go
live in the fourth quarter
of calendar year 2007, we

We’ve successfully
undertaken one of

the largest mergers

in Australian corporate
history and regenerated
into a sector leader...

Paut ANTHONY,
MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CEO

are now preparing to take
advantage of our new system’s
capabilities, using the enhanced
customer data to improve our
services to customers and
design focused products that
can be brought to market with
speed and accuracy.

AGL's aim s to be admired

not just within Australia, but
globally as a leading integrated
energy company, Our internal
changes go far beyond simply
improving our energy retailing
capability. We have enhanced
the top team at AGL with
further experience to take

us forward as a world-class
integrated energy company
and we have completed 90%
of an initiative to ‘right size’ the
remainder of our business.

This restructuring has
reduced the remaining
corporate support
employees by 60%,

resulting in organisational
effectiveness, efficiency gains
and further cost savings.

Mark: The Australian energy
scene is changing rapidly as
the sector moves towards

full deregulation. For AGL the
choice was abvious: we ceuld
either take a passive position
or drive the pace of change in
consolidation and take control
of our destiny. AGL's ‘four
corners’ strategy has, in less
than 12 months, unfolded into
a series of strategic acquisitions
and organic growth initiatives,
which have placed AGLin a
strong position as the largest
integrated energy company in
the land.

AGL now commands
a strong position
on cost-to-
serve within
its retail




business. It controls generating
capacity which is well matched
to its demand and has capability
across the full suite of proven
renewable energy technologies,

Paul: We've not only
concentrated our efforts in
power generation. We have

" 2 built a strong position in
., ~tream equity gas during this
short period of time. Cur
acquisition of upstream gas
interests now amount to
900 PJ (2P) and has been
widely acknowledged by
the investor community as
economically wise and smartly
transacted.

At the same time, AGL has,
through a series of
carefully planred
strategic
acquisitions,
evolved into

the country's largest national
retailer of energy. We now have
a strong cornerstone position in
all mature and growth markets.

Sustainability ta AGLis an
imperative, not an accessory!
We've invested more than
$2.25 billionin recent years
in renewable generation. We
continue to evaluate further
investment in renewable energy
sources. This year we were
the first Australian business to
commit to the Chicago Climate
Exchange, and the first non-
American pawer utility to take
advantage of this opportunity.
AGL is building up a material
asset base and trading
capability in the renewable
space and an active role in
the shaping of policy in
carbon trading and
abatement.

Mark & Pauk: Sustainability is a
factor that plays directly on our
position as an energy feader,
not just in terms of scale, but
to deliver double digit returns
to our shareholders over the
medium term.

We must also mention the
turbutent time the energy
markets have gone through
during this reporting period. We
have witnessed a one-in-100
year drought which harmpered
our ability to operate our newly
acquired Southern Hydro assets
and resulted in an extreme
shortage of energy production
from generators of all types
across the national efectricity
market. At the same time, we
experienced record-breaking
temperature extremes. These
severe market conditions
caused some of the highest
and most volatile electricity

prices in the history of the
national electricity market.
Some smaller energy retailars
had to close their businesses to
new customers. Some energy
retailers were forced to cease
retailing energy altogether.

At AGL, our skill, ingenuity,
foresight and prudent hedying
policy protected us from these
extremes and positioned

us well.

AGL's transformation has

only just begun. Utilising the
skills and commitment of the
AGL team, we will relentlessly
continue to hunt and capture
value for our shareholders. We
will improve our services to
customers to build a world-
class company that delivers
outstanding returns, all without
losing sight of cur impact

on the community and the
environment.

...which is the ideal
position to pursue our
role as a world-class
energy major.

MARK JOHNSON, CHAIRMAN

AGL Concise Annual Report 2007 9




Guess who's an AGL customer?

Who gets the hot water into
the coffee? AGL. What about
the chocolate in the biscuit?

Arnott’s... and AGL again.
COLETTE STUTO, AGL EMPLOYEE AND CUSTOMER,
SYDNEY

Browse the supermarket shelves and you'lt be
surprised how many brand names we're helping
get to market. Arnott’s is a perfect example.
Our partnership goes back more than 75 years,
to the day gas was first connected to Arnott's
original factory in Sydney’s Strathfield. Today we
supply all their gas and electricity requirements
across four states, as well as working with them
on carbon-reduction strategies for the future.
That's important when you need 106 gigawatt
hours every year — or, to come back to the
coffee, enough energy to make 445,200 cups.

Arnott’s annual requirements by state (MWh)
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Guess who’s an AGL customer?




AGL provides the link between
eco-friendly power and

traditional brewing. Tm Coorer,
MANAGING DIRECTOR, COOPERS BREWERY

All the beer produced by Coopers Brewery
each day - all 20,000 cartons - has passed
through a brewing process powered uniquely
by AGL. We custom built a new power plant
within Coopers’ premises, designed around the
energy-efficient principles of cogeneration.
(Cogeneration is the simultaneous production
of two forms of energy from a single fuel
source. In this case, electricity and steam are
generated from natural gas.) Our innovative
design won an Engineering Excellence Award
from the South Australian chapter of Engineers
Austratia. Sometimes sustainability can be ali
beer and skittles.

AGL Concise Annual Report 2007

AGL (3,600 MW) squity generation

1. Clean burn gas 54%

2. Hydro 22%

3, Coal 19%

4. wind 3%

5. Landfill and biogas/cogeneration 2%




Guess who's an AGL customer?

Centennial Coal’s
underground coal mining
operations at Mandalong,

in New South Wales’ Hunter
Region, tap into more than
simply coal. Coal mine methane
{CMM) is also a valuable by-
product, but one that currently
escapes into the atmosphere.

AGL has recently agreed to build
and operate a gas delivery and
flare system at the mine, to
convert the methane into less
environmentally-harmful gases.
This conversion is the equivalent
of preventing 280,000 tonnes
of CO, from entering our
atmosphere every year.

Plans are already in place for

a CMM-fired generator to be
built on site to convert this
by-product into usable power,
with substantiat commercial
and operational benefits for
Centennial,

AGL's leadership team get
hands-on experience with
some of our major clients.

From left to right:

Paul McWilliams

Head of Corporate Support
Services and Company
Secretary, AGL

Scott Thomas

Head of Major Customers, AGL .

Donna Dryden
General Manager, Sustainable
Development, Centennial Coal

Emily Kucukalic
Head of Brand and
External Relations, AGL

Phil James
Group General Manager,
Retail Energy, AGL

|-




OneSteel is the largest
manufacturer of long steel
products in Australia, and

one of its leading metals
distribution companies, with
revenues in excess of $6 billion.
It manufactures and distributes
a comprehensive range of
solutions in steel, including

" . ctural, rail and rod bars,
wire, tube, pipes, valves and
recycled metals, as well as
reinforcing mesh such as

the Handimesh® example
pictured belows.

Since 2000, AGL has met
OneSteel's various needs for
gas and electricity in four
states, and locks forward to
assisting OneSteel in its plans
for expansion,

bbbt

(W )

Jane Thomas
Head of People & Culture, AGL

Mark Gell

General Manager, Corporate
Development & Sustainability,
OneSteel

Paul Anthony

Managing Director and CEQ,
AGL

Stephen Mikkelsen
Chief Financial Officer, AGL

Inghams, a major player in
Australia’'s poultry industry with
more than 7,000 employees
nationwide, has had a 10 year
relationship with AGL. Together,
AGL and Inghams are developing
sustainable solutions to reduce
their future carban footprint.

AGL is working with Inghams
to improve enerqy efficiency
at one of its largest sites. AGL
has also provided a critical and
detailed briefing to the senior
management team outling the
facts behind climate change
and the risks and opportunities
it presents.

Paul Frazer
Head of Group Business
Development, AGL

Julia Seddon
Erwironment Manager, Inghams

Michael Fraser
Group General Manager
Merchant Energy, AGL

Mike Moraza
General Manager,
Gas Development, AGL




Community.

AGL is helping us extend
a bit of warmth to the people

who need it most. Toey HaLL
CEOQO, MISSION AUSTRALLA

At AGL, we believe our success is measured
not only by the financial outcomes of what
we do, but by the social and environmental
impact our actions have on wider society.
We've made it a goal to connect our business
and employees with vulnerable groups

within the community in ways that make

a genuine contribution, engage our people
and strengthen our business.




Energy for Life

AGL's community investment
program, Energy for Life,
reflects our commitment to
making a difference in the
communities where we live and
work, It acknowledges that the
skills, expertise and energy
that lie within our business

~ nd within every one of our
=+nployees — can make a real
contribution towards alleviating
hardship and improving the
lives of others. As an energy
company comrnitted to
encouraging energy efficiency
as broadly as we can, Energy for
Life places a special emphasis
on assisting vulnerable
Australians to reduce their
energy costs.

Warmth in Winter for
vulnerable Australians
As a provider cf energy to more
than three million homes across
the country, Warmth in Winter
is AGL's way of assisting those
Australians wha don't enjoy the
~fort and security of a warm
1ume each night.

For four years AGL's Warmth
in Winter program has been
helping to fund the winter
energy bills of smergency
accommodaticn services in
New South Wzles, Victoria,
South Australia, and from this
year, Queensland. Cur support
to these agencies frees up
valuable funds they can redirect
to services which directly
assist their clients. This year
our support funded more than
150,000 warm winter nights
for 253 agencies. Since the
program began, Warrnth in
Winter has funded more than

520,000 warm winter nights
for homeless Australians.

warmth in Winter atso funds a
number of energy audits and
installations of energy efficient
retro-fits for selected emergency
accommodation services, helping
thern to make ongoing reductions
to their energy consumption
and costs. Last year our support
helped 12 services save
between $800 and $10,000 a
year - which, in tarms of carbon
emissions, was the equivalent
of taking 35 cars off the road
permanently. This year we aim to
make an even larger contribution
through our audits, which will
commence shortly.

Energy matters

As part of our commitment to
encourage energy efficiency,
this year AGL has invested

in three key initiatives of our
strategic partner, Mission
Australia, to support their
important work. In South
Australia a three-year pilot
program will assist vulnerable
househotds, many of whom have
sought help through AGL's
Staying Connected customer
hardship program, to reduce
their energy usage and costs.
Clients will receive practical
support from Mission Australia
through home energy audits,
access to a no-interest loans
scheme to purchase energy
efficient appliances, advice on
managing household finances
and referrals to further support
services to help get them back
on track.

In New South Wales, we're
funding the provision of energy
efficient design, materials,
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fit-out and appliances for

the relocation of a homeless
family service. And in Victoria,
our funding will facilitate the
planning and development of a
major best-practice emergency
accommaodation service in
central Metbourne.

Our employees: agents

for change

AGL's volunteering program

is AGL's way of delivering
hands-on assistance to the
community. All employees are
eligible to take paid volunteering
leave and, for four years now,
our employees have been
supporting disadvantaged
Australians in hundreds

of ways, This year, volunteering
efforts included career coaching
of long-term unermployed
people, staging parties for
people experiencing
homelessness, paint-and-fix
projects for emergency
accommodation services and
mentoring of disadvantaged
young people.

Our people are also encouraged
to contribute to our 17 partners
through our Employee

Giving program, with all their
contributions matched dollar-
for-doltar by AGL. This year

we provided $186,301 to our
Employee Giving partners. Since
the program began in 2003, we
have donated about $1 million
to charities, with nearly 30% of
that going to support services
such as The Salvation Army,
Mission Australia and Youth

Off the Streets, to help people
experiencing homelessness.

Staying Connected is AGL's \
Natlenal Hardship Program, It°s
available to our residential
customers who are experiencing
temporary or long-term
financial difficulties that

make paying their energy

bills difficult. 1t is designed to
provide personalised assistance
and support to help customers
get back on track with their
energy bills.

From this year, our three year
pilot program with Mission
Australia will connect our
Adelaide Staying Connected
customers with additional
support services; including
home energy audits, assistance
to purchase energy efficient
appliances, case management
and referral to other welfare
services and individual support
with household budgeting.
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Sustainability.

14

Everyone’s got a carbon
footprint. It’s just a question
of ‘what size foot would you

rather have?’ Anorew DUDGEON,
MANAGER SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY, AGL

Now more than ever, sustainability issues are
centrat to the success of our business. Since
the completion of the transaction with Alinta
Limited and the formation of AGL Energy in
October last year, we have a renewed focus on
identifying and managing environmentat and
social risks and opportunities.

T
f/f’?}? 4

!

PPy

John Fitzgerald, AGL Corporate
Lawyer, recerds a personal set
of footprints with daughter Emily.




AGL continues to provide
leadership around managing
sustainability issues for

the energy sector. AGL is

an independeritly assessed
constituent of the FTSE4Good
Index Series and is listed on
the Dow Jones Sustainability
World index.

__ agenerator and retailer

of electricity, AGL is
committed to reducing the
carbon intensity of electricity
generation, while at the same
time meeting customers’
expectations on energy cost.
In recent years AGL has
invested more than $2.25
billion in renewable energy
generation prcjects utilising a
range of techniologies including
wind, hydro and biomass
power generation.

AGL has taken a leading This year AGL was ranked

position in setting binding as the number one ASX50

greenhouse emission reduction  company for climate change

targets as the only utility reporting by the Association

outside of North America of Chartered Certified

to become a member of the Accountants Australia & New

Chicago Climate Exchange. Zealand (ACCAA). The AGL

This market provides us Sustainability Report 2007

another opportunity to will be released at this year's

access the global buyers for Annual General Meeting.

our carbon offset projects.

And we've also used our \
Growing demand for electricity,

posntlorrn as one of the |arge§t coupled with an increasing
Australian producers of verified  scarcity of available water, is
greenhouse offsets to support  forcing AGL to develap new and

community based ermission innovative power generation
unity 1551 solutions. As the largest

reduction initiatives such as Iinvestment in an Australian

Earth Howr. For this event, hydro-electricity project tn
over 25 years, the Bogong

AGL provided greenhouse hydro-electricity scheme will
gas offsets for the electricity transform the existing Kiewa
generated for all its 180,000 “h:"“ "‘“’I' "":" 'I‘;i'"f""t

. peak operation by utilising
Cusmmers_m New South Wales the existing releases from the
for the entire 24 hours of Rocky Valley Reservolr.

31 March 2007. In additlon to being a zero

emission plant, Bogong also has

Our approach to sustainability been designed to minimise the

goes beyond a purely current environmental impacts
environmental view; it's about of the cperation of McKay
Creek by returning the Pretty
Valley branch of the East Kiewa
River to natural water Rows.

people too.

Helping our employees to stay
focused and feel supported has
been a priority of thelast 12
months. This included access to
flexibte working arrangements,
volunteering, carer’s leave

and the employee assistance
scheme. AGL's wellbeing
program had benefits such as
health and financial literacy
which assisted employees

to maintain a balance

between work and personal
commitments. These programs
have been hallmarks of our
commitment to supporting
employee weltbeing.
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Retail Energy.

Even when we’re facing some of
the hottest competition in the
world, our dual-fuel accounts
continue to increase.

Our downstream Retail Energy division handles
the purchase, sale and marketing of gas and
electricity to AGLs two million electricity
customer accounts and two million gas ¢ustomer
accounts”. Over the past 12 months, the retail
energy market has become even more fiercely
competitive. Victoria is the most competitive
energy market in the world, with South Australia
in third place’. Although we lost approximately
100,000 customer accounts due to the effects
of this fierce competition, we've increased our
dual fuel accounts by more than 30,000.

Our total number of dual
fuel accounts now stands at
1,126,920, This represents
an increase of products per
customer from 1.25 at June
2006 to 1.27 at June 2007.

Competition for major
customers in the industrial and
commercial segment has been
similarly intense. We maintained
our gas market share across
all regions through good
retention, strong acquisitions
and growing our customer
base, but were forced to
reduce our margins for most
of the retention volumes

that were recontracted.
Electricity markets have been
equally challenging. As prices
for wholesale energy have
dramatically risen, customers
have experienced considerable

1o

increases in their electricity
supply costs.

We're revising our safes-
engagement model to provide
better levels of customer
service and pinpoint directions
for business development. This
will give us the competitive
advantage of having a clearer
‘whole of customer” view,
thanks to superior customer
account planning and focused
project-development activities.

Queensland entry

In addition to our
transfarmation program, we
entered the Queensland retail
market by successfully acquiring
the Sun Gas and Powerdirect
businesses from the Queenstand
Government, Powerdirect
delivered AGL an additionat
473,000 residential, small-

to-medium enterprise (SME),
and industrial and commercial
electricity customers, Sun Gas
added approximately 70,800
residential and industrial and
commercial gas customers.
Powerdirect residential
customers consurme maore
electricity per household

on average than residential
customers in other states and,
when cornbined with the

Sun Gas acquisition, provides
AGL the platform to offer dual-
fuel capabilities in Australia’s
fastest-growing market. These
acquisitions are consistent with
our four corners’ strategy and
will cement AGL's position as
the energy retailer of choice in
Australia.

Retail regulation

During the year, regulated
energy prices were varied in line
with existing multi-year price
agreements in South Australia
(for electricity), New South
Wales (for gas) and Victoria
{for both gas and electricity).
AGL continues to actively
support the development of

a consistent, efficient national
regulatory framework for
Australia’s energy markets,
which would reduce the
regulatory burden and provide
retailers with the opportunity
to deliver more effective and
consistent service to customers
regardless of their home state.
The national framework is now
scheduled to be implemented
by 1 July 2008,

Alncludes 100% of joint ventures

*Australion Electricity Market
Competitive Intensity Index,
Datamonitor, September 2006

AGL’s Customer Service call \

centres have continued to
perform in 2006/2007. As well
as handling 3.7 million calls, we
worked hard to achieve a 20%
inprovement in call quality
performance,
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Merchant Businesses.

As population grows, demand
for power grows. We’re planting
our generation seeds today so
we’ll have more to harvest
tomorrow.

Every day. AGL is engaged in a fine balancing
act between ‘upstream’ and ‘downstream’
concerns. As our customer numbers increase,
naturally we also want to increase our ability to
reliably supply those customers via our gas and
power generation portfolios. Maintaining an
even balance of our trading portfolios, power
generating assets and upstream gas interests,
with that of our retail load and our major
custorners who include a number of Australia’s
largest energy consumers is a key deliverable.

e

Our upstream business
comprises focused electricity
procurement, generation
operations and generation
development projects. These
are: Gas Development, involved
in upstream gas developments;
Wholesale Gas, purchasing gas
supplies for AGL's retail business
and wholesale customers; and
Energy Services, managing
small-scale renewable power
generation.

We also focus on the needs

of our major industrial and
commercial custorers, to make
sure the base of our vertically-
integrated model is secure

and continues to grow. We go
beyond the straight sale of
energy by providing technical
expertise and advice on

energy efficiency to help these
customers more effectively
manage their energy usage and
give them the best solutions for
their large-scale power needs.

Merchant Power

By continuing to manage

AGL's upstream assets better,
Merchant Power has a central
role in managing wholesale
market risk, ensuring that
optimum margins can be passed
on to shareholders. This year, our
upstream activity has taken on
an unmistakable shade of green:

[3 Construction commenced
on South Australia’s 95
megawatt (MW) Haltett
Wind Farm (see inset) and
Victoria's 140 MW Bogong
Hydro development.
Bogong will be the largest
hydroelectric plant
constructed on the
mainland in 20 years.




3 Through ar: agreement
with TRUenergy, AGL has
divested the 180 MW
Hallett Power Station and
acquired the 1,280 MW
gas-fired Torrens Island
Power Station in Adelaide.
Torrens Islend, being a
flexible, low-emission plant,

- provides us with a significant
capability to manage the
volatility of the wholesale
electricity market.

AGLs diverse generation
portfolio, spread across
traditional thermal generation
(gas and coal} as yvell as
renewable sources (including
hydre, wind, landfilt gas and
biogas), has reduced our
greenhouse gas burden and
will add value in the carbon-
conscious times ahead.

Gas Development

Three key acquisitions during
the past year have bolstered
the diversity of AGL's wholesale
gas portfolio:

A S50% interest in
Queensland’s Moranbah Gas
Project for $33 million.
Moranbah was Australia’s
largest coal-seam
methane (((SM) producer
in 2006/2007, located in
the heart of the expanding
Gladstone/Townsville
energy cor-idor.

3@ A 27.6% shareholding in
Queensland Gas Company
(QGC) for $327 million, as
well a5 a sale agreement
to purchase up to 740
petajoules (PJ} of gas over
the next 20 years.

3 A 35% shaieholdingin
CSM Energy for $3 million.
CSM Energy is a company

engaged in coal-mine
methane extraction and
commercialisation, providing
entry into a fast-growing
segment of an industry
facing tighter environmental
restrictions.

AGL continues to build its
understanding, skills and
technical competence in the
CSM sector thanks to its 50%
stake in New South Wales’
Camden Gas Project. Camden
is the first AGL-operated
upstream CSM asset, and

our efforts since taking over
the operator rolein early
2006 have led to technical
breakthroughs, such as large-
scale horizontal drilling and
increased preduction.

AQG\ retains its oil and gas
licence interests in PNG
(ranging from 11.9% to 66.7%}
and will continue to work with
its joint venture partners to
extract maximum value from
the assets. New opportunities
to commercialise the gas
reserves, such as liquid
natural gas (LNG) exports,
are being investigated.

Wholesale Gas

In late 2006, AGL successfully
bid for the Sun Gas business
owned by Queensland's
Energex Limited, with the
transaction completing on

1 February 2007.

This single acquisition
significantly increased AGL's
presence in one of eastern
Australia’s fastest growing gas
markets. Sun Gas consisted

of approximately 70,800
commercial, industrial and retail
customers in south-eastern
Queensland and Victoria. As
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well as expanding the wholesale
gas portfolio with contracts

in Queensland and Victoria for
supply and transport services
and agreements, the natural
gas within the portfolio has
now increased to around 250 PJ
per annum.

Energy Services

The Energy Services business
has continued the successful
delivery of small-scale
renewable energy projects
including:

[ Commissioning two landfll
power generation plants in
Hobart and Glenorchy, and
a cogeneration plant with
Symex Limited.

3 Acquiring the assets of
Powerdirect Utility Services
(PDUS) as part of the
Queensland Government’s
retail energy sales process.
Since taking ownership of
the four PDUS projects on
1 March 2007 AGL has
delivered better-than-
forecast returns.

Energy Services is well
positioned to take advantage
of the increased awareness

of global warming and the way
businesses will need to change
to minimise it and particularly
the growing attractiveness

of investenents in clean power
and the possibilities offered by
carbon trading. 2008 will be

a year of continued growth,
thanks to a pipeline of
opportunities in small-scale
renewables, customer-
partnered cogeneration

and our sustainability
consultancy activities.

AGL’s Haltett Wind Farm passed\

a construction milestone

in March 2007, with the
completion of the first of

45 planned turbines. Each
turbine will stand more than 80
metres high, making them the
largest bullt in the southern
hemisphere, AGL's emission-
fres generation portfolio is set
to receive a further boost:
pending Board approval, Hallett
willbe joined by another 71 MY
wind farm at a neighbouring
site, scheduled to come online
in 2009.
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Investments.

It’s all about assembling a
portfolio that lines up with the
corporate vision. Getting our
ducks in a row, so to speak.

Energy Investments

ActewAGL (50%)

As part of the merger of AGL's
infrastructure assets with Alinta,
AGL's interests in the gas and
electricity networks in the ACT
were transferred to Alinta. AGLs
interests in ActewAGL since

that time relate exclusively to
the retail joint venture between
AGL and Actew Corporation.
The ActewAGL retail business
interests involve the retailing of
gas and electricity in the capital
region and Nowra.

The joint venture has about
152,000 electricity and
107,000 natural gas customers.
The joint venture performed
extremely well during the
year despite increasing
competitive pressures and
increasing wholesale energy
costs, supported in part by a
television campaign (pictured)
encouraging consumers to
‘bundle’ their domestic utilities
with ActewAGL.

AlintaAGL (33%)

AlintaAGL is a joint venture
between Alinta and AGL located
in Western Australia, involving
two main business streams:
retailing and cogeneration
facilities.

The retail business operates
in Perth and the surrounding
region, supplying gas to over
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half a million residentfal and
business customers, and more
recently electricity to more
than a thousand contestable
business customers,

The cogeneration business

has developed two 140 MW
facilities at Alcoa’s alumina
refineries in Western Australia.
A further two plants are
scheduled to be built at Alcoa's
Wagerup refinery (351 MW).

AGL has an option to sell its
33% or purchase the remaining
67% of AlintaAGL following
certain events, cne of which
was a change of ownership

at Alinta, Babcock & Brown
triggered this option following
the purchase of Alinta.

GasValpo (100%)

GasValpo is the largest
regional gas distributor in Chile
outside the Santiago metro
area. Situated in the coastal
cities of Valparaiso and Vina
del Mar west of Santiago,
GasValpo distributes and
markets gas to approximately
42,000 residential customers
and 1,000 commercial and
industrial customers.

GasValpo continues to be very
well positioned compared to

its key competitors in mitigating
supply shortages due to
restrictions fror Argentina,

LPG This year’s television campaign
encouraged consumers to ‘bundle’
Elgas (50%) their domestic utilities with

Elgas is the largest distributor ActewAGL.

and marketer of LPG in
Australia. It also owns and
operates Australia’s largest
underground LPG storage
facility (the Sydney LPG
Cavern), located at Port Botany
in Sydney.

Energy sales volumes were
impacted by warmer than
normal weather during the
year, However, profitability was
maintained despite a higher gas
cost. Customer growth was
evident in the hot water market
as climate change factors
increase the attractiveness of
gas as the energy source.

In 2006 the Federal
Government announced a
scheme to financially assist
private motorists to convert
cars to run on automative
LPG. This decision has given a
significant boost to this market
and has resulted in higher
volumes supplied from the
Sydney LPG Cavern,
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Directors’ Report.

The Directors present their
report together with the
Concise Financial Report of
AGL Energy Limited and its
consolidated entities, being
AGL and its controlled entities,
for the year ended 30 lune
2007 and the Independent
Auditor’s Report thereon.

AGL Energy Limited became
the head entity of the AGL
Energy Limited Group on 25
October 2006 following the
completion of the transaction
with Alinta Limited. AGL Energy
Limited began trading on the
Australian Securities Exchange
on 12 October 2006.

Left to right:

Max Quld, Jerry Maycock, Mark
Johnson, Paul Anthony, Carolyn
Hewson, Charles Allen, Sandra
Mc Phee, Graham Reaney
(Absent: Bruce Phillips)

The Board of Directors

The Directors of AGL at any
time during or since the end of
the hnancial year are:
Non-executive Directors
Mark Johnson

Charles Allen AO

David Craig
(resigned 9 October 2006)

Carolyn Hewsaon

Jerry Maycock
{appointed 9 October 2006}

Sandra McPhee
(appointed 9 October 2006)

Max Ould

Bruce Phillips
(appointed 23 August 2007)

Graham Reaney
(appointed 5 July 2006)

Executive Director
Paul Anthony

Directors’ qualifications,
experience, other
directorships and special
responsibilities

Mark Johnson LLB MBA

— Chairman Age 66

Term: Non-executive Director
and Chairman since 17
February 2006.

Independent: Yes".
Committees: Chairman of the
People and Performance, and
Health, Safety and Environment
Committees,

Directorships: Chairman of
Macquarie Infrastructure Group
(commenced as a Directar

in 1996). Mark is also
Chairman of the Australian
Strategic Policy Institute and
Chairman of the APEC Business
Advisory Council.

Experience: Previously non-
executive Deputy Chairman

of Macquarie Bank Limited
(commenced as a Director in
1987 and retired on 19 July
2007), a Director of Pioneer




International, Sydney Futures
Exchange, the Victor Chang
Cardiac Research Institute and
Chairman of The Australian Gas
Light Company {commenced as
a Director in 1388 and retired
on 25 October 20086).

Charles Allen AO MA MSc
Age 71
Term: Non-executive Director
since 17 February 2006.
Independent: fes'.
Committees: Member of the
Audit and Risk Management,
and Health, Sa’ety and
ironment Committees.
wirectorships: Chairman of
Air Liquide Australia Limited
{commenced zs a Director in
April 1998) and Chairman of
Florey Neuroscience Institutes
(commenced &5 a Director
in July 2007).
Experience; Retired as
Managing Director of
Woodside Petroleum Limited
in 1996. Within the last three
years he was 3 Director and

Chairman of National Australia
Bank Limited (commenced as
a Director in 1992 and retired
in 2004}, a Director of Amcor
Limited {commenced in 1996
and retired in October 2005),
Earthwatch Australia and

of The Australian Gas Light
Company (commenced in
1996 and retired on

25 Qctober 2006).

Paul Anthony — Managing
Director Age 51

Term: Managing Director since
23 May 2006,

independent: No.

Committees: Member of the
Health, Safety and Environment
Committee.

Directorships: Nil.

Experience: Paul is the
Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer of AGL.

His career as an executive

has been with energy and
resources companies in several
countries, He has had extensive
experience in business start-ups,

turnarounds, IPOs, mergers &
acquisitions and high growth
targets in the public and private
equity sector. Paul has operated
in managing director, chief
executive officer, executive
chair and non-executive
Director positions within the
energy sector internationally
and has a deep knowledge base
of deregulated electricity and
gas markets.

Carolyn Hewson BEc (Hons)
MA Age 52

Term: Non-executive Director
since 17 February 2006.
Independent: Yes'.
Committees: Member of the
Audit and Risk Management,
and Health, Safety and
Environment Committees.
Directorships: Director of
Westpac Banking Corporation
{commenced in 2003).
Experience: Community
involvement includes board

or advisory roles with the
YWCA New South Wales, the

Royal Humane Society of New
South Wales and The Australian
Charities Fund. Within the last
three years she was a Director
of CSR Limited (commenced in
1995 and retired in July 2005),
The Australian Gas Light
Company {commeanced in 1996
and retired on 25 October
2006} and also a member of
the Economic Developmen:
Board {South Australia).

Jerry Maycock BEng
(Mech) {(Hons) Age 55
Term: Non-executive Director
since 9 October 2006,
Independent: Yes".
Committees: Member of the
Audit and Risk Management,
and Health, Safety and
Environment Committees.
Directorships: Appointed as
Executive Director of CSR
Limited on 13 February 2007
and as Managing Director on
1 April 2007.

Experience: Extensive
experience in manufacturing
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businesses. For three years, he
led the successful restructure
and growth of Hastie Group
Limited, the last two years

as Managing Director
(commenced as a Director

in 2005 and retired in
February 2007).

Max Ould BEc Age 60

Term: Non-executive Director
since 17 February 2006.
Independent: Yes'.
Committees: Member of the
People and Performance, and
Health, Safety and Environment
Committees,

Directorships: Chairman of
Goodman Fielder Limited
{commenced as a Director in
2005 and appointed Chairman
in September 2006). Director
of Pacific Brands Limited
{commenced in 2004)

and Foster's Group Limited
{commenced in 2004).
Experience: Previously he was
Managing Director of National
Foods Limited and a Director
of The Australian Gas Light
Cormpany {commenced in 2004

and retired on 25 October 2006).

Sandra McPhee Dip Ed,
FAICD Age 61

Term: Non-executive Director
since 9 October 2006.
Independent: Yes'.
Committees: Member of the
People and Performance and
Health, Safety and Environment
Committees.

Directorships: Non-executive
Director of Coles Group Limited
{commenced in 2003) and
Perpetual Limited (commenced
in 2004}. She is also a Director
of Australia Post, the Art
Galtery of New South Wales
and St Vincent's & Mater Health
Sydney Limited.

Experience: Previous
appointments include Deputy
Chair South Australian Water
Corporation, and a Director of
Primelife Corporation Limited
(commenced in 2003 and
retired in 2005), CARE Australia
and Tourism Council Australia
Limited. She has extensive
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experience as a non-executive
Director and as a senior
executive in international
consumer facing industries
including retail, tourism and
aviation, most recently with
Qantas Airways Limited.

Bruce Phillips BSc (Hons)
Age 52

Term: Non-executive Director
since 23 August 2007.
Independent: Yes".
Committees: Member of the
Health, Safety and Environment
Committee,

Directorships: Managing
Director of Australian Worldwide
Exploration Limited (AWE)
(commenced in 1997 and
retired on 31 August 2007).
Experience: Previously Business
Development Manager of
Command Petroleurn and
Consulting Energy Advisor to
Prudential-Bache Securities.

He is an executive with over

30 years of technical, financial
and management experience

in the upstream sector of the
petroleum industry. He founded
AWE, was chief technical
advisor to Petroleumn Securities
Australia Limited and was sole
petroleum advisor to News
Corporation Limited.

Graham Reaney BCom CPA
Age 64

Term; Non-executive Director
since S July 2006.
Independent: Yes',
Committees: Chairman of the
Audit and Risk Management
Committee, member of the
People and Performance, and
Health, Safety and Environment
Committees.

Directorships: Chairman of
PMP timited (commenced

as a Director in 2002) and a
Director of St George Bank
Limited (commenced in 1996).
Experience: Previous
appointments include Director
of So Natural Foods Australia
Limited {(commenced in

2001 and retired in October
2006) and a Director of The
Australian Gas tight Company
(commenced in 1988 and

retired on 25 October 2006).
He retired as Managing Director
of National Foods Limited in
1996, prior to which time he
was Managing Director of IEL,

Directors’ Interests.

The relevant interest of each
Director in the share capital

of the companies within the
consolidated entity, as notified
by the Directors to the ASX in
accordance with Section 205G
of the Carporations Act 2001,
at the date of this report is

as follows:

Mark Johnson 210,068
Charles Allen AO 82.881
Paul Anthony 309,230
Carolyn Hewson 52,899
Jerry Maycock 16,381
Sandra McPhee 3,200
Max Quld 17.944
Bruce Phillips Nil
Graham Reaney 92,906
Company Secretary

Paul McWilliams was appointed
Company Secretary on

25 August 2006, upon

the resignation of Jane
McAloon, His educational
qualifications include Bachelor
of Arts (Accounting) from the
University of South Australia
and Master of Applied Finance
from Macquarie University.

He is a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of
Australia. He bas mere than

30 years experience across a
variety of roles in the Australian
Public Service, chartered
accounting and listed public
companies,

Directors’ Meetings

The number of Directors’
meetings (including meetings
of committees of Directors)
and number of meetings
attended by each of the
Directors of AGL Energy Limited
during the financial year follow
on page 25.

* The Board has specifically
considered the independenca of
all non-executive Directors. The
Board has determined that each
non-executive Director, including
all those whose tenure exceads
ten years (which includes time as a
Director of The Australian Gas Light
Company), remains independent.
In forming these views, the Board
had regard to the conduct

of Directors in Board meetings as
well as discussions with Directors
regarding their independence.




Regular Board
Meetings

Diféctor’s Nime. %, AT B e 8]
Mark Johnsan 6 7 19 20 2 3 1 z
Charles Allen AD ) 7“ . 7 | 17 20 3 4 2 Z

Paul Anthony 7 7 18 20 2 2
David Craig (to @ October 2006} ) . A37 3 - o

Carolyn Hewson 7 7 20 20 4 4 2 2
Jerry Maycock (from 9 October 2006) 4 4 18 20 3 4 2 2

. ndra McPhee (from 9 October 266@ 4 4 26 20 3 3 2 P

Max Ould ' _ N 6 7 . 19 0 3. 3 1 2
Graham Reaney* (from 5 Juh; 20(_)5) 7 | 7 18 20 4 4 3 3 2 2

Special Board
Meetings

Audit and Risk People and Health, Safety
Management Performance and Environmant
Committee Committee

Committee

A - number of meetings attended

B - number of meetings held during the time the Director held office during the year

In addition to the above selected meetings, Directors throughout the year participated in informal meetings and telephone conferences. AGL makes extensive use
of email between meetings to keep Directors informed of current developments; to provide relevant background and industry information; to dispase of routire
matters and allovs formal Board meetings to concentrate on more important matters. An extended strategy session is held at least once a year. Periodically,

Directors meet informally outside AGL to discuss matters of interest and travel to visit assets, operations or locations of particular relevance to AGL.

* Graham Reaney was a Director of The Australian Gas Light Company from 1988 but was only appointed to the AGL Energy Limited Board on 5 July 2006.

Review and Results of Operations

The consolidated profit for the year after income tax attributable
to shareholders was $410.5 million (2005/2006 $45.6 million).
A review of the operations and of the results of those operations
of the consolidated entity during the financial year are contained
on pages 16 to 20 of this Annual Report.

- te of Affairs

AGL Energy Lirnited was a controlled entity of The Australian Gas
Light Company (old AGL) until 25 October 2006. AGL Energy
Limited demerged from old AGL as a consequence of the approval
by old AGL shereholders of the old AGL Scheme of Arrangement

at a meeting h2ld on & October 2006. AGL Energy Limited began
trading on the Australian Securities Exchange on 12 October 2006
under the code of "AGK',

In the opinion ¢f the Direciors, there were no other significant
changes in the state of affairs of the AGL Energy Limited consolidated
entity that occisrred during the financial year.

Principal Activities
Sale of gas and electricity;
B Power generation and energy processing infrastructure;

B Development of naturaf gas production facilities;

AGL Concise Annual Report 2007

B Exploration, extraction, production and sale of coal seam
methane gas (CSM);

M Extraction and sale of liquid petroleum gas (LPG); and
E¥ Extraction and sale of crude oil.

There were no significant changes to the nature of AGL's activities
during the year.

Dividends

The fallowing dividends have been paid or declared by the Directors
since 30 June 2006;

Interim dividend of 9.5 cents per share (100% franked) out of
profits for the period 26 October to 31 December 2006 paid
on 22 March 2007,

$35.8 million

Final dividend of 26.0 cents per share (100% franked) payable
on 28 September 2007,

$112.7 million
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Events Subsequent to Balance Date

Apart frorn matters discussed elsewhere in this Annual Report, the
Directors are not aware of any other matter or circumstance which
has arisen since 30 June 2007 that has significantly affected or
may significantly affect the operations of the consolidated

entity, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of
the consclidated entity in the future.

Likely Developments, Strategies and Prospects

Further information about likely developments in the operations of
AGL Energy Limited and its consolidated entity and the expected
results of those operations in the future has not been included in this
Annual Report because disclosure of the information would be likety
to result in unreasonable prejudice to the consolidated entity.

Environmental Regulation

The consolidated entity's operations are subject to various
Commonwaealth, State and Territory environmental laws in relation
to energy. This includes laws relating to exploration, extraction and
production of CSM, LPG production and storage, power generation
{natural gas, hydro electricity, biogas, landfll gas, bagasse and
agricultural waste).

The board meets as the Health, Safety and Environment Committee
in order to review the effectiveness of the entity’s health, safety
and environmental management program, Lifeguard, Envirenmental
management performance is monitored on an ongoing basis by way
of systemn audits conducted by the entity using internal and external
auditors.

Power Generation

Environmental licence conditions in New South Wales, Victoria,
South Australia and Queensland govern aspects of the management
of generation assets.

Operational and maintenance activities were undertaken
throughout Australia during the financial year and no environmentat
infringements were reported and no fines were levied on this part
of the business during the period.

In South Australia, AGL and EPA South Australia continued
discussions about noise compliance at Hallett Power Station,
which was initiated in the prior year. These discussions resulted in
the amendment of the EPA licence at the power station, and full
compliance with revised noise limits. Hallett Power Station

was sold on 2 July 2007.

At Somerton Power Station in Victoria, AGL applied for, and
received, a temporary waiver associated with an annual operating
cap condition of its EPA Licence under Section 30A of the
Environment Protection Act 1970. The temporary waiver was
granted by EPA Victoria on the basis of a projected impact on
energy security of supply and community hardship brought about
by extrere drought conditions which continue to impact on
historically available hydroelectric generation levels in Victoria,
New South Wales and Queensland. The Section 30A waiver expires
in Septerber 2007 and contains increased emissions testing and
EPA reparting requirements than provided for under the original
licence conditions.
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Hydrocarbon Extractions (HCE)

HCE is licensed under the New South Wales Protection of the
Environment Operations Act 1997. The HCE facility has exceeded
its load-based air and water emissions licence limits. AGL presented
a case for amendment of licence conditions to the independent
Technical Review Panel run by the EPA during the year, and a
further submission to this panelis planned for early in the financial
year 2007/2008. AGL is also working directly with the EPA on

this matter.

Coal Seam Methane Operations

The consolidated entity continues to expand its CSM exploration
and production operations in New South Wales and is now involved
with exploration and production operations in Queensland. The
New South Wales operations are licensed under the Protection of
the Environment Operations Act 1997. Although miner non-
compliances with some licence conditions have been recorded '
at the Rosalind Park Gas Plant, no fines or penalties have been
incurred, AGL continues to work closely with the EPA and the

New South Wales Department of Planning on environmental
management matters. In the coming financial year, the
environmental protection licence will be formally reviewed.

Construction Activities

Construction activities relating to new power generation assets
were undertaken at sites in Victoria and South Australia during the
financial year. No environmental infringements were reported and
no fines were levied on this part of the business during the period.

Proceedings on Behalf of the Company

No person has applied under Section 237 of the Corporations Act
2001 for leave to bring proceedings on behalf of AGL or intervene
in any proceedings to which AGL is a party for the purpose of
taking responsibility on behalf of AGL for all or any part of those
proceedings. AGL was not a party to any such proceedings during
the year,

Non-Audit Services

Non-audit services have been provided during the year by the
external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatst. Disclosure of the details
of these services can be found in the Full Financial Repart.

The board has a fermal policy on the provision of auditing and
related services. Specifically, the external auditor is precluded from
providing any services that might threaten its independence or
conflict with its assurance and compliance role. Quarterly reports
on the provision of auditing and related services are provided to
the board through the Audit and Risk Management Committee.
Directors are satisfied that the provision of $541,000 of non-audit
services by the external auditor is compatible with the general
standard of independence for auditors.

The policy and procedures in place, and the review by the Audlit

and Risk Management Committee, enabie Directors to conclude
that non-audit services provided did not compromise the external
auditor’s independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.
There is also in place an agreed rotation policy for the senior auditor
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. The external auditor annually provides
a letter 1o the Company Secretary on its independence within




the meaning of relevant legislation and professional standards.
No officers of AGL were partners or directors of Defoitte Touche
Tohmatsu during this reporting period.

Indemnification and Insurance of Directors and Officers

AGL's Constitution indemnifies, to the extent permitted by law,
officers of the consolidated entity when acting in their capacity in
respect of:

W liability to third parties {other than related entities} when acting
in good faith; and

B costs and expenses of successfully defending legal proceedings
and ancillary matters.

The Directors named earlier in this report and the Company
Secretary, Paul McWilliams, have the benefit of the indemnity,

. ether with any other person who makes, or participates in
making decisions that affect the whole, or a substantial part of
the business of AGL or has the capacity to affect significantly
AGL's financial standing.

During the year AGL paid a premium in respect of a contract
insuring all Directors of AGL as listed earlier, all Directors of related
bodies corporate of AGL, secretaries and other officers of the
consolidated entity against liabilities incurred in their capacity as
Director or officer, as the case may be, of the consolidated entity
or any entity forming part of the consolidated entity.

A further premium was paid in respect of a contract insuring all
Directors and officers of AGL regarding the prospectus issued
for the institutional placement of 56,550,000 new shares in the
Company in February 2007.

AGL also paid a seven year run-off’ premium in respect of the
Directors of The Australian Gas Light Company as at 25 October
20086, some of whorn are now Directors of AGL. The run-off
policy insures all Directors and officers of The Australian Gas Light
Company as at 25 October 2006 against liabilities incurred in their
capacity as Directors and officers of that company for which a

~ mmay be rade over the next seven years.

The contracts prohibit disclosure of the nature of the liabilities and
the amount of premium paid and the Corporations Act 2001 does
not require disclosure of the information.

Auditor’s Declaration

A copy of the external auditor’s declaration under Section 307C of
the Corporaticns Act 2001 in relation to the audit for the hnancial
year is on page 46 of this Annual Report.

Rounding

The company is an entity to which ASIC Class Order 38/100
applies and in accordance with that Class Order, amounts in the
Financial Report and the Directors’ Report have been rounded of
to the nearest tenth of a millign dollars, unless otherwise stated.

Remuneration Report

Introduction

This is the first remuneration report for AGL Energy Limited and
its consalidated entities. AGL has undergone a year of significant
change, as is highlighted elsewhere in this Annual Report. The year
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was marked by the completion of the Alinta transaction, which was
a primary strategic focus for key management personnel (KMPF).
At the same time KMP remained focused on delivering operational
business outcomes including acquisitions and organic growth, as
well as undertaking restructuring opportunities designed to unlock
shareholder benefit.

The compensation strategy AGL had in place during this unique
period has served it well in maintaining and motivating employees.
The balance of fixed and variable remuneration components has
meant that the incentive arrangements could be leveraged to focus
attention on the various priorities.

The board has been refining AGL's compensation practices over
the year in order to attract and retain our best people, as well

as maintaining a performance culture, The board also intends to
continue reviewing practices over the coming year to align further
our executive compensation with the generation of long-term
shareholder value.

A detailed report covering the relevant requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 and AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures
follows.

The Audit Report of the Full Financia! Report contains confirmation
that the compensation disclosures that are contained within this
Remuneration Report comply with paragraphs Aus 25.4 to Aus
25.7.2 of Accounting Standard AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures.,

Compensation policy

The People and Performance Committee of the board is resporisible
for reviewing the compensation strategy and compensation
arrangements for KMP. It makes recommendations to the board on
these matters. The cornmittee has access to independent external
advisers as required,

Note the term Key Management Personnel (KMP) refers to:
non-executive Directors;

[ executive Directors (the Managing Director who is the Chief
Executive Officer);

senior leadership executives; and

@ the five highest remunerated executives in AGL and its
consolidated entities.

The purpose of the People and Performance Committee, in relation
to compensation, is to ensure that appropriate compensation
procedures and programs are in place to:

B Achieve clear alignment between the needs and requirements
of key stakeholder groups (ie. customers and shareholders and
communities) and the objectives and values of AGL people;

@ Reward AGL people for excellent performance, and keep them
committed and motivated;

Achieve compliance with relevant legislation and corporate
governance principles on compensation practices and
employment policies;
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B Effectively overview compensation practice, including incentives,

superannuation and retirement benefits, for all levels, enabling
AGL to attract and retain people who create value for
shareholders; and

B Make recommendations to the AGL board on matters relating
to the AGL board, the Chief Executive Officer {CEO), the senior
executive team and policy issues.

Further detail on the role of the People and Performance Committee
can be found in the Corporate Governance section of the AGL Full
Annual Report 2007.

. Non-executive Directors

The structure of the compensation s a base fee plus a committee
fee, where applicable, for participation by a non-executive Director
in board committees, Chairing a committee attracts a higher fee
rate. This structure ensures the compensation reflects the general
responsibilities of individual non-executive Directors as well as

the extra responsibilities and workload involved in participating

in a committee. The Chairman of the board receives no extra
compensation for participation in or chairing committees.

The maximum aggregate remuneration for non-executive Directors
is $1.5 million per annum, which was approved by a resolution
passed by The Australian Gas Light Company when it was AGL's
sole shareholder on @ December 2005. Shareholders at a general
meeting must approve any increases to this amount.

Non-executive Directors’ fees are determined by the board with
reference to advice and data from AGL's compensation specialists
and from external compensation advisers, The board takes into
account this data and advice, which includes market comparison
of compensation paid to non-executive Directors of companies
in comparator groups across the ASX100, as well as levels of
remuneration which the board considers appropriate to attract
and retain suitably gualified non-executive Directors.

As the focus of the board is on the long-term strategic direction
of AGL, there is no direct link between non-executive Director
compensation and the short-term results of AGL.

The table on page 33 provides a breakdown of fees paid to each
non-executive Director.

The fee structure for non-executive Directors is as follows:

Audit and Risk Other
Base Fee Management Committee
(5) Committee Fees (3) Fees ($)
Chairman
of Board 300.000
Chairmanof 4 500 36,000 18,000
Committee
Director 120,000 24,000 12,000

Superannuation contributions, as required under the Superannuation
Guarantee Charge (SGC) legislation, are also provided for non-
executive Directors. These are deducted from the level of
compensation set and included as part of their total compensation
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under the approved maximum aggregate fee pool. Consistent with
Choice of Fund legislation, non-executive Directors’ SGC contributions
are made to a complying superannuation fund of their choice.

Non-executive Directors are encouraged to have at least 20%

of their base fees (after SGC contributions) allocated to the
purchase of AGL shares. AGL shares are acquired under the AGL
Share Purchase Plan. The trustee acquires these shares on merket
at market price during identified trading windows.

No options have been granted over any securities or interests
of AGL or the consolidated entity.

The board has a process of review of individual Board members

and sub-committees of the board by the Chairman and their peers,

consistent with the ASX Corporate Governance Principles on Board

accountability. This process is also part of the strategic overview of.
non-executive Directors addressed under the Charter of the People
and Performance Committee.

CEQO and senior executive team

The compensation of the CEQ and senior executives is delivered
through a combination of fixed compensation and short and long-
term incentives. The target level of these components for individual
roles is determined by comparison with market compensation
practice and this enables AGL. to attract and retain key people

in critical rofes.

External advisors provide the market data and comparators as
well as commentary which ensure compensation is established

in a rigorous manner. The comparators selected are organisations
of comparable business complexity, as well as general market
comparisons based on functional job requirements.

Compensation elements
The total compensation of senior executives has three elements:

O Total Fixed Remuneration (TFR) is the amount of non-
variable cornpensation specified in an employee’s contract of
employment. Superannuation contributions are deducted from
the employee's TFR. The cost {including any component for
Fringe Benefits Tax) for other items such as laptop computers or
novated vehicle lease payments is also deducted. The amount
of TFR is established with reference to compensation market
research, considering the scope and nature of the role and the
individual senior executive’s performance and experience. Fixed
compensation represents pay for ‘doing the job’ reflecting AGL's
strategy in terms of desired market position.

[J Shert-Term Incentive (5T1) payments are awarded based on the
achievement of individuat performance targets which are set
at the commencement of the financial year. These targets are
aimed at focusing senior executives on achieving AGL's tactical
objectives as well as reaching divisional performance targets
and objectives linked to the individual's role. They therefore align
individual per formance and business outcomes, and provide
transparent linkages between rewards and the individual's
performance. STk can vary annually based on individual




performance against the specified targets. The STt can be paid
in cash, or at the individual's election, salary sacrificed and
taken either as equity or as a contribution to the employee’s
superannuation fund.

Long-Term Incentive {LTI) payments are delivered through the
granting of share performance rights in accordance with the
terms of the Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) details of which
are provided on this page. The LTIP is positioned to align the
interests o” shareholders and senior executives. The focus

of the LTI performance metric is the creation of long-term
shareholder value.

The balance between fixed and variable compensation is kept under
review for market relevance and competitiveness.

. rincentive elements may be made to reward performance
achieved, to encourage better future performance or for
retention purposes.

During the year the board, after obtaining external advice, endorsed
the development of a new variable remuneration structure

which differentiated the compensation mix of fixed and variable
levels based on the executive’s capacity in their role to influence
bottom line results. These new principles have been applied to

new executive appointments. Any necessary rebalancing of the
remuneration mix of other executives will be implemented following
the next compensation review.,

The relative proportions of the compensation mix between fixed
and variable/at. risk increases with the level of responsibility and/or
criticality of role. tn respect of the 2006/2007 financial year, the
typical maximum compensation mix within the senior roles in AGL
was as follows:

Maximum percentage of
total target compensation

TFR STi LTI

Chief Executive Officer 22.7%  27.3% 50%

Group General Managers 50% 30% 20%
hief Financial Officer/H f

(CSroip B;si::elso[)e\f:l;p:\:j\: 60% 20% 20%

Other Senior Executives 75% 15% 10%

'Percentages are based on stretch outcomes.

The weighting for variable pay is utilised to drive requirements for
increased opportunities as well as AGL's "pay for performance’
approach to ccmpensation.

Performance Linkage

(a) Short-Term Incentive

To be eligible to receive a STI each executive must demonstrate
AGL's values and perform satisfactorily in their role. This is confirmed
through annual assessment using the AGL Performance Planning
and Review Process.
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The actual level of STI paid for each individual is determined at
the end of the financial year by assessment of that individual’s
performance against key-value drivers of the business, which
include financial, strategic, risk management and leadership
outcomes. These measures are identified and agreed at the
beginning of the financial year and included on a dashboard

for each individual. The dashboard is capable of measurement v:hich
is undertaken against relevant criteria for each key-value driver.
It also identifies how performance will be measured at threshold,
target and stretch points. No STl is payable for any component
where the threshold level has not been reached.

The use of the dashboard assists in focusing executives on achieving
AGL's tactical objectives as well as reaching divisional targets and
objectives linked to the individual's role, and provides a robust link
between AGL and individual performance and STI payments.

The maximum STI payment varies between 20% and 60% of TFR
for senior executives and 120% of TFR for the CEC, Mr Anthony.
Each individual has different weightings on their key-value drivers
depending on their role within AGL. Typically the weightings mey
be; inancial performance of business unit 50%, strategic/risk
performance 30%, and leadership 20%.

(b) Long-Term Incentive

The AGL LTIP is designed to align the interests of AGL executives
and the strategic goals of AGL with those of AGL shareholders.
The plan, which ensures that AGL is able to attract and retain key
employees, forms an integral compaonent of AGL's compensation
structure.

Under the LTIP, executives are granted Share Performance Rights (SPRs)
that vest to the executive after three years, subject to the extent
that the performance conditions applicable to those SPRs are met.

As AGL has beenin a transitionary year, the initial grant of SPRs has
a staged implementation, SPRs will vest in two equal tranches, with
the first tranche to vest approximately two years after the award
and the second tranche to vest 12 months later.

The applicable performance condition for the initial grant of SPRs
is based on Tatal Shareholder Return {TSR) aver a specified period,
with the level of vesting dependent upon AGL's TSR performance
measured against the ASX100 companies as at 26 October 2006
as follows:

AGL's TSR ranking relative
to comparator group

Percentage of
SPRs that vest

TSR below 50%
TSR equal to 50%

0%
0%

Progressive vesting on a
straight-line basis from
greater than 50%

and less than 100%

100%

TSR between 51% and 74%

TSR equat to or greater than 75%
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TSR performance is assessed by an independent third party provider
to ensure accuracy and independence of calculation. TSR was chosen
as it provides an indication of shareholder wealth creation.

The rights will vest to the extent to which the performance
condition is satisfied or waived by the AGL board.

The performance conditions and comparator group applicable to
future SPRs granted under the LTIP will be determined by the AGL
board at the time of each grant.

The percentages for distribution to executives are determined
based on market practice so as to give AGL comparability in
compensation against our competitors.

The board is currently considering the terms on which future grants
of SPRs may be made under the LTIP. To assist this process the
board has sought external advice having regard to market practice
in Australia and overseas, as welf as consulting with several of AGLs
institutional investors.

As foreshadowed in the last Annual Report of The Australian Gas
Light Company (old AGL) and the Scheme Booklet of old AGL, rights
held by plan participants under the old AGL LTIP vested following the
implementation of the transaction with Alinta Limited. This recognised
that employees of AGL Energy ceased their employment relationship
with ofd AGL, the company in which the share rights were awarded.

Participants in the LTIP are restricted from entering into any
derivative or other financial product in relation to the SPRs, or for
the purpose of protecting the participant against an economic
exposure to price movements in AGL shares.

If a plan participant ceases employment as a result of death, total
and permanent disablement, redundancy, retirement or such other
circumnstances, the AGL board in its discretion may determine

that the SPRs held by that participant will vest, subject to the
satisfaction of performance conditions applicable to those SPRs.

Any SPRs that do not vest when performance conditions are
applied to them will automatically lapse.

An SPR is an entitlement to one fully paid ordinary share in AGL
Energy Limited. SPRs do not carry dividend or voting rights.
However, SPRs wilt participate in bonus issues, rights issues and
reconstructions and re-organisations of the capital of AGL in the
same manner as AGL shares.

Under the terms of the plan the board has the discretion to vary
the terms of the vesting period.

AGL financial performance
The financial performance information provided below is to meet
the reporting requirements of the Corporaticns Act 2001.

Year ended 30 June 2007
EPS (3) 1.786
Dividends (cents)? 355
Increase/decrease in adjusted share price (%) nfa

'EPS excludes significant items;
Dividends relate to financial years, not when they were paid.

Service agreements

Senior executives have service agreements which specify their
compensation cornponents described above. These agreements
provide for their participation in the short and Jong-term incentive
arrangements in accordance with the terms of the plans. The board
can vary the terms of these plans, although such variations cannot
be applied retrospectively.

Contract Termination notice Termination notice Terminatior
Executive Position duration period by AGL  period by employee payments
Michael Fraser Group General Manager No fixed term & months 6 months  Up to 78 weeks TFR
Merchant Energy
P .
Paul Frazer Head of Group Business No fixed term & months 4 months
Development
Phil James Group General Manager No fixed term 3 months 3Imonths Up to 73 Weeks TFR
Retail Energy
Head of Corporate
Paul McWilliams Support Services &  No fixed term 6 months 4 months 6 months TFR
Company Secretary
Stephen Mikkelsen Chief Financial Officer  No fixed term & months 4 months

STl are payable:

B o those employed at the end of the financial year;

B (o those whose employment terminated during the financial year due to death or retirerent on grounds of age or invalidity,

on a pro-rata basis; and
B at the discretion of the board in other circumstances.
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Details of contract duration, notice period for termination, and
termination payments for senior executives are provided in the
table following. Details on Mr Anthony are covered in the section
comrmencing on page 31.

The terms of the LTIP specify the circumstances in which
performance rights vest on termination. These are on death,
retirement on grounds of age or invalidity and, at the discretion of
the board, in other circumstances, such as redundancy.

Retention provisions

The contract of the Group General Manager Merchant Energy
includes provision for the payment of retention fees. The final
payment under this provision will be made if he continues with AGL
until 31 August 2009. A pro-rated proportion of the retention fee
i nayable if AGL terminates the contract before the final vesting

.. -8, except on summary dismissal.

There was a provision in the contract of the Head of Corporate
Support Services & Company Secretary, for the payment of a
retention fee if he remained employed with AGL until 30 June 2007,
As this condition was met, payment was made in July 2007,

Terms of Mr Anthony’s appointment

A new service agreement with Mr Anthony was entered into with
effect from 1 September 2006 (foreshadowed previously in the
old AGL Annual Report and the old AGL Scheme Booklet), which
covered both his appointment as Managing Director and CEQ of
old AGL, but also provided for his appointment as Managing
Director and CEQ of AGL.

A summary of this service agreement follows.

Term

Mr Anthony's contract is open ended and his appointrment as
Managing Director and CEC will continue until his appointment
is terminated.

AGL may terminate Mr Anthony’s appeintment:

Nithout notice in the event of any act which detrimentally affects
AGL such as dishonesty, fraud or serious or wilful misconduct in the
discharge of Mr Anthony’s duties or unremedied, persistent, wilful
or material breaches of the terms of the service contract; or

(b) By giving Mr Anthony 18 months notice in writing at any time
within the first: two years of his appointment, or 12 months notice
in writing at any time after the expiration of that two year period.

Mr Anthony may terminate his appointment:

(a) By giving AGL nine months notice in writing at any time within
the first two years of his appointment, or six months notice in
writing at any time after the expiration of that two year period; or

(b) By giving AGL three months notice in writing if he ceases to
hold the most senior management role within AGL or ceases to
report to the board, AGL ceases to be listed on the ASX {other than
because of change in control), or if the scope of his responsibilities
or authorities is materially diminished (fundamental change in
circumstances). This right of termination must be exercised within
six months after the fundamental change in circumstance oceurs.
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if Mr Anthony's appointment is terminated by either AGL or

Mr Anthony by giving a period of notice, then AGL may at any time
before the end of the period of notice pay to Mr Anthony, in lieu

of the unexpired notice period, an amount equal to that proportion
of Mr Anthony's TFR at the time which corresponds to the period
of notice which is foregone.

If AGL terminates Mr Anthony’s appointment by giving 18 months
or 12 months notice in writing as referred to above, all unvested
SPRs held by Mr Anthony will immediately vest at no cost to

Mr Anthony.

If Mr Anthony terminates his appointment within six months
following the accurrence of a fundamental change of circumstarces,
then AGL will pay Mr Anthony, in addition to any other payments or
benefits due to him, a termination payment equal to twice the
aggregate of Mr Anthony's TFR at the time the fundamental change
in circumstances occurs and the amount payable under AGL's S5TI
for that year for on-target performance. In addition, all unvested
SPRs held by Mr Anthony will immediately vest on termination at no
cost to Mr Anthony.

Compensation
Mr Anthony's compensation will comprise the components set
out below.

Total Fixed Remuneration

Mr Anthony's current TFR is $1.3 million per annum. During each
year of the term of his appointment, the board will review

Mr Anthony's TFR for the next year and determine whether to
increase that amount, having regard to such matters as the board
thinks fit. Under no circumstances ¢an Mr Anthony’s TFR be
reduced without Mr Anthony's written consent.

Sign-on entitlement
Mr Anthony was paid a sign-on entitlement of $1.64 million in cash
on 1 September 2006.

AGL Share Purchase Plan allocation

On 1 September 2006, Mr Anthony received an altocation of
307.230 AGL shares under the AGL Share Purchase FPlan, which

is subject to the restrictions on disposal imposed by that plan.

Mr Anthony has agreed not to dispose of any AGL shares acquired
in respect of this allocation for a period of two years,

Short-Term Incentive

Mr Anthony is entitled to annual STI payments based on the
achievernent of key performance indicators (KPIs) in accordance
with AGL's STI. The board sets the KPIs on an annual basis.

The value of any STi actually provided in a year will be determined
by the board having regard to the level of achievement of the kPIs.

Level of achievement of KPIs Amount of 5TI

Threshold 40% of TFR
Target 60% of TFR
Stretch 120% of TFR

Any 5T due to Mr Anthony will be paid in cash.

Mr Anthony's performance for his first year has been assessed
by the board and a payment made at a stretch outcormne.
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Long-Term Incentive
Mr Anthony participates in the AGL LTIP the terms of which are
summarised above under the heading Long-Term Incentive on page 29.

Immediately following the implementation of the transaction with
Alinta Limited, Mr Anthony was granted, in respect of the first year
of his appointment, 187,801 SPRs under the AGL LTIP which was
equal to the Base SPR Quantity. For each of the next two years

Mr Anthony will be entitled to receive an annual grant of SPRs
under the AGL LTIP, equal to the Base SPR Quantity.

Base SPR Quantity is determined by dividing a stretch LTi target
of $2.86 million, by the volume weighted average trading price
(VWAP) of AGL shares over the period of ten trading days
immediately before the date the grant is made.

Subject to the satisfaction of applicable performance conditions
{outlined on page 29) and scaled in accordance with thern, the above
SPRs will vest as follows; a number of the granted SPRs having a
value of $2.145 million, determined in accordance with the VWAP
used at the date of their issue, will vest in each of September 2007,
2008 and 2009 with the balance vesting in 2010.

All unvested SPRs held by Mr Anthony will immediately vest if
a change in controt of AGL occurs.

The SPRs granted to Mr Anthony under AGL's LTIP which are
referred to above will vest at no cost to Mr Anthony and, except as

Compensation of key management personnel
For the year ended 30 June 2007

set out above, will be issued on the terms and conditions specified
in AGL's LTIP.

The terms upon which SPRs are granted to Mr Anthony in relation
to subsequent years during Mr Anthony's appointment will be
determined by negotiation between Mr Anthony and the AGL board.

Restraint

Under the terms of his appointment, Mr Anthony must not, for

a period of six months following termination of his appointment,
be engaged or concerned in any capacity whatsoever, in any
business which is similar to, or competitive with, the business of
AGL or solicit or entice or attempt to solicit or entice any Director,
employee or client of AGL to feave AGL, or attempt to persuade
any Director, employee or client of AGL with whom Mr Anthony
had dealings within the year preceding the termination of his
appointment to discontinue their relationship with AGL or reduce
the amount of business they do with AGL.

Share purchase participation

AGL offers its employees participation in the following share plans:
the AGL Share Reward Plan, the AGL Long-Term Incentive Plan
and the AGL Share Purchase Plan. The total number of employees
participating in the three AGL Share Plans is 49 and the total
number of shares held is 600,203.

Post-Employment | Other |Termination| Share-Based
Senior Executives Short-Term Benefits Benefits Long- | Benefits Payments
Term

Benefits Value of
Other Equity
Cash  Short-Term Non- Short- (c)asa
Salary  tncentives  Monetary Term Super- Retirement Gther Share % of
Name & Fees (a) Benefits (b} Benefits [ annuation  Benefits Rights (c) Plans (d) Total Total
Paul Anthorry 2927313 1,560,000 398,597 0 12,686 0 o] 4] 0 6.364,046() 11,262,642 56,
Greg Hayes (e) 144,924 Q 18,734 0 41,882) 0 0 2,000,000 640.844 (k} 0 2846384 225
Michael Fraser 1,220951 406,450 o} o] 135,237 Q o] 0 459,939 (k} 11.291 2,233,868 211
Phil Jarnes 368,436 307200 18,707 0 194,922 () 0 o] 0 316,400 (k) 9167 1,214,832 26.8
Jane McAloon (e) 108,734 0 13,382 o] 6,565 (j} Q 4] 458,000 266,498 (k) 0 B53,179 31.2
Robert Casamento{f) 411,172 0 o] 0 9,137 0 0 657101 83,592 (k) 4] 1,161,002 72
Stephen Mikkelsen{g) 581,563 168,413 o] 0 10,756 Q Q o) o] 24,570 785,302 ER|
Paul McWilliams 302,643 80,234 24,200 0 30,178 o s} 0 46,950(k 2,926 487N 10.2
Paul Frazer (h) 212,959 103.353 Q 0 104180{) 4] o] G 0 0 420,492 0
Ross Gersbach (i) 520,627 0 11,629 0 21.073 ] o 467,635 244,488 (k) 0 1,265,452 193

Totals 6,799,322 2,625.650 485,249 0 566,616 0 0 3,582,736 2,058,711 6,412,000 22,530,284

(2) Earned inrespect of 2006/2007 financial year and paid in Septernber 2007, (b) Includes the value of benefits such as cars, representational spouse travel and
entertainment and Fringe Benefits Tax. (c) The amortisation of share rights issued under the LTIP recognising that they vest generally over a three-year period. (d) The
fair value LTI Share Performance Rights has been calculated using a monte-carlo simulation method. (e) Ceased employment September 2006. (f) Ceased emplcyment
Qctober 2006, (g} Commenced employment August 2006, {h) Commenced employment October 2006. (i) Ceased employment Novernber 2006. (j) inckedes salary
sacrifice contributions. {k) Includes the value of vested shares issued under the LTIP on cessation of the plan following completion of the Alinta transaction. (I} Includes

value of shares acquired under the AGL Share Purchase Plan,

A portion of compensation was paid by and relates to The Australian Gas Light Company up to completion of the Alinta transaction. All executives are entitled to four

weeks annual leave and tong service leave based on statutory entitlements.
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Non-executive Directors Short-Term Benefits Post-Employment Benefits Share-Based Payments

Cash Salary Short-Term Non-Monetary Super- Retirement Other Share
Hame & Fees tncentives (a) Benefits (b) annuation Benefits Rights Plans (a) Total{b)
Mark Johnson 56,529 Q o] 12,686 o o 217660 236,875
Charles Allen AQ 144,114 s} 0 o} 0 0 0 144,114
Dawvid Craig (c) 9,540 0 o] 26,007 o} 1] 2,089 37636
Carolyn Hewson 69,969 0 0 56,457 0 [} 15,664 142,000
lerry Maycock 2,836 0 o 78,545 ¢ 0 16.800 98181
Sandra McPhee 0 0 [¢] 90,000 0 0 0 490,000
Max Ould 9.846 0 1] 100,000 0 0 20,403 130,249
Graham Reaney 27772 0 0 100,000 0 [¢] 38,000 135,772
Totals 320,606 ] a 463,695 8] 3] 310,616 1,094,917

value of fees allocated to acquire shares under the AGL Share Purchase Plan, (b) No other benefits either short-term, long-term or termination were provided
1o non-executive Directors. () Ceased as an AGL Director in October 2006.
A portion of compensation was paid by and relates to The Australian Gas tight Company up to completion of the Alinta transaction.

Compensation of key management personnel
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Post-Employment Other | Termination Share-Based

Senior Executives Short-Term Benefits Benefits Long- Benefits Payments
Term value of
Cash Short-Term Cther Benehts Other Equity {c)
Salary  Incentives Non-Monetary Short-Term Super- Retirement Rights Share as i % of
Name & Fees (3} Benefits (b) Benefits | annuation Benefits (c) Plans Total Total
Paul Anthany 321,965 0 a 0 3,035 0 4} o} 0 a 325,000 4]
Greg Hayes 1229787 496,000 42,419 0 40,650 (d} 0 Q 0 630916 0 2439772 259
Michael Fraser 754,010 397,350 Q Q 131,823 o} Q 0 383,656 0 1666839 230
Phil James 354,048 292,825 24,319 0 183477(d) 0 0 0 235290 0 1089959 26
lane McAloon 640,224 245,700 33,654 0 38220(d) 0 0 0 198,283 0 1156081 17.2
Robert Casamentn 301,834 o 0 Q0 110.675(d} 4] Q 0 52,102 0 464,611 1.2
.. s Gersbach 336,062 150,000 27,466 0 49,583 o] 4] 0 141,746 0 704,857 201

otats 3,937,930 1,581,875 127,858 [ 557.463 0 0 0 1,641,993 0 7,847,119

{a) Earned in respect of 2005/2006 financial year and paid in September 2006. (b} Includes the value of benefits such as cars, representational spouse travel and entertainment
and Fringe Benefits Tax, {c) The amortisation of share rights issued under the LTIP recognising that they vest generally over a three~year period. (d) Includes satary sacrifice
contributions. All executives are entitled to four weeks annual leave and long service leave based on statutory entitlements.

Non-executlve Directors Short-Term Benefits Post-Employment Benefits Share-Based Payments
Cash Salary Short-Term  Non-Maonetary Super- Retirement Other Share

Name & fees Incentives Benefits annuation Benehts Rights Plans (a) Total (b)
Mark Johnsan 12,334 0 o} 12139 Q 0 234,277 258,750
Charles Allen AQ 126,872 0 0 11,128 0 0 0 138,000
David Craiqg 89,456 0 i} 13,748 0 0 26,542 129,746
Carolyn Hewson 62,932 0 0 12139 0 0 62,929 134,000
Max Quld 5713 o] 0 12,139 o] 4] 108,648 126,500
Graham Reaney 74,425 3] 0 12139 0 0 74,436 163,000
Totals 371,732 0 0 73,41 1] 0 506,832 951,995

(a} Value of fees allocated to acquire shares under the AGL Share Purchase Plan. (b} No other benefits either shari-term, long-term or termination were provided to
non-executive Directors.
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Details of share performance rights granted to key management personnel
as part of compensation

For the year ended 30 une 2007

Name Held at SPRs granted Grant date Falr value per SPR ‘ Lapsed I Vested ‘ Held at
30 June 2006 during the year at grant date {c) 30 June 2007

Paul Anthony - 140,851 (a) 8 Nov 06 488 - - 140,851
Paul Anthony - 46,950 (@) B Nov 06 6.02 - - 46,950
Michael Fraser - 6,605 (b} 1 Apr 07 5.81 - . - 6,605
Michael Fraser - 5,604 {b) 1 Apr 07 67 - - 6,604
Phil James - 5,363 {b) 1 Apr 07 581 - - 5,363
Phil James - 5,362 (b) 1 Apr0?7 6N - - 5,362
Stephen Mikkelsen - 16,285 (b) 8 Nov 06 6.60 - - 16,285
Pauk Mcwilliams - 1.7112{b) 1 Apr 07 58 - - 1,712
Paul Mcwilliams - 1,711 (b) 1Apr 07 6.71 - - 1,71t
Paul Frazer - - - - - - -

{3} SPRs will vest at no cost to Mr Anthony. Providing performance conditions are satisfied, 140,857 SPRs will vest on 1 Septernber 2007 and 46,950 SPRs will vest on 1 September 200€.

(b} SPRs will vest at no cost ta the recipient. Providing performance canditions are satished, 13,680 5PRs will vest on 1 September 2008 and 29,962 SPRs witl vest on 1 September 2009,

(c) Fair value of SPRs granted is measured using the monte carlo simulation method. {d) The above table only inchides SPRs granted to key management personnel under the AGL Energy
Long-Term Incentive Plan. Details of movements in share rights hekd by key management personnel under the Long-Term Incentive Plan of the Australian Gas Light Company have not been inchxded

This Directors’ Report is made in accordance with a resotution of the Board of Directors and is signed for and on behaif of the Board
this 14th day of September 2007.

ptod Town

Mark Johnson
Chairman
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 30 June 2007

Note  2007($m) 2006 ($m)

Revenue 3 3,765.3 384.2
Other income 383 . 29
Expenses 3 (2,989.8), (195.7)
Share of profits of associates and jointly controlled entities using the equity method 36.1 -
Profit before net financing costs, depreciation and amortisation 8499 191.4
Depreciation and amortisation {163.5)' (51.8)
Profit before net financing costs €686.4 139.6
Finance income 369 . 9.8
Finance costs (132.2)f (76.3)

+t financing costs (95.3), (€6.9)
Profit before income tax 591.1 - 731
Income tax expense (180.6)! (27.5)
Profit after income tax attributable to shareholders of the parent entity 4105 45.6
Earnings per share — inctuding significant items
Basic for profit for the year (cents) 148.5 =t
Diluted for profit for the year (cents) 148.5 -t
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Basic (millions} 2764 ° -!
Dituted {millions) 276.6 -1
' The weighted average number of ordinary shares was 2 and earnings per share including
significant items was 2,277,712,150 cents pes share.
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Consolidated balance sheet
For the year ended 30 June 2007

2007 ($m) 2006 ($m)
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2799 585
Trade and other receivables 1,702.3 187.0
Inventaries 279 216
Current tax assets 306 -
Other financial assets 51025 - 4281
Other assets 15.3 - 34
Non-current assets classified as held for re-sale 1170 -
Total current assets 7.275.5 598.6
Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables 14 - 01
Investments accounted for using the equity methed 5344 -
Exploration and evaluation assets 66.2 51.5
Oil and gas assets 5051 . 498.4
Property, pfant and equipment 1,101.6 8454
Intangible assets 3,204.9 847.0
Other financial assets 1,392.2 378
Other assets 26.2 4.2
Total non-current assets 6,832.0 2,284.4
Total assets 14,107.5 2,983.0
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 14823 58.5
Borrowings 406.3 5.8
Provisions 21.2 9.9
Current tax liabilities 10.3 4.3
Other financial liabilities 21927 2.3421
QOther liabilities 1.5 0.9
Total current liabilities 4,114.3 2,421.5
Non-current liabilities '
Borrowings 20414 288.2
Provisions 326 13.5
Deferred tax liabilities 1,340.3 36.8
Other financial liabilities 356 91.7
Other liabilities 257 1.3
Total non-current liabilities 3,475.6 4315
Total liabilities 7.589.9 2,853.0
Net assets 6,517.6 130.0
Equity
Issued capital 3,8589 -
Other contributed equity - 1239
Reserves 21375 (17.3}
Retained earnings 521.2 234
Total equity 6,517.6 130.0
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 30 June 2007

2007 ($m}+ 2006 ($m}
Cash flows fram operating activities
Receipts from customers 47379 4743
Payments to suppliers and employees (4.328.7)- (152.1)
Dividends received 264 . -
Finance incoma received 20.2 1.2
Finance costs paid (94.3) (10.9)
Income tax paid (71.9) (23.8)
Net cash provided by operating activities 289.6 | 3:8.7
Cash flows from investing activities _
Payments for property, plant and equipment (150.2)¢ (39.5)
Payments for exploration and evaluation assets o 03y (49.4)
Payments for oil and gas assets (147.3) (534.0)
Payments for investments (452.3) -
Payments for acquisition of businesses/subsidiaries (1,308.9) (1.440.4)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 48.4 0.2
Net cash used in investing activities (2,030.6) (2,063.1)
Cash flows frem financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares, net of transaction costs 911.9 -
Proceeds from borrowings 2,528.3 3.7
Repayment of borrowings {142.4} (3.9)
Loans advanced (2470} -
Proceeds from loan repayments 9.6 -
! ~ans repaid/advanced to other related entities {1.043.5) 1,775.8
idends paid {35.8) -
Net cash provided by financing activities 1,9811 1.775.6
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2401 51.2
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 52.8 -
Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held in foreign currencies (13,79 1.6
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 279.2 52.8
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Concise Financial Report.

Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
For the year ended 30 June 2007

2007 ($m) 2006 ($m)
Cash flow hedges:

Gain/(loss) taken to equity 3,482.2 (53.6)

Transferred to profit or loss for the period (2579) -
Net gain on hedge of net investments in foreign operations 708 23
Translation of foreign operations {78.1), 6.7
Actuarial gain on defined benefit superannuation plans .99 -
Share of actuarial gain on defined benefit superannuation plans attributable to associates © 5.2 -
Share of net decrements in reserves attributable to associates and joint venture entities (174.3) -
Income tax on items taken directly to or transferred from equity (994.7) 27.3-
Net income/{expenses) recognised directly in equity 2,063.1 (17.3)
Profit for the period 4105 - 456
Total recognised income and expense for the period 2,473.6 28.3
Reconciliation of consolidated statement of
recognised income and expense to equity movements

Retained
Resc:erv_es Earnings
($m) (3m)
Opening balance at 30 June 2006 (17.3) 234
Current period movemenits 2,051.0 121
Adjustrment on acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities in respect
of the AGL Energy demerger 1034 mo
Movement in reserves not reflected in statement of recognised income and expense above:

Share-based payment transactions - 07 -
Profit for the period - 4105
Dividend paid - (35.8)
Closing balance at 30 June 2007 21375 521.2
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Results

Profit after incorne tax attributable to shareholders has increased by $364.9 million to $410.5 million over the previous corresponding vear,

resulting in basic earnings per share of 148.5 cents.

The result for the year included the following one-off significant items after tax as detatled in Note 8 of the Fult Financial Statements:

2007 ($im)
Dermerger costs - {407y
Impairment of IT assets - (159)
Redundancy/restructure costs (233),‘
" ject expenditure write off (3:2)
»un Gas integration costs ‘ _é.él)u
Total significant items after income tax (85.9);

Excluding Significant ltems  Including Significant Itams
30June 2007  30June 2006  30June2007 30 June 2006

{$m) {$m) ($m) {$m)
::;f:’:] 5:::5 ::‘E Eﬁ;{;r;:;g costs, depreciation and amortisation 9726 1914 849.9 1914
Depreciation and amortisation (163.5) (51.8) (163.5) {51.8)
Profit before net financing costs and income tax (EBIT) 8091 1396 686.4 139.6
Finance incomi 36.9 9.8 369 9.8
Finance costs (132.2) {76.3) (132.2) (76.3)
Net financing costs (95.3) (66.5) (95.3) (66.5)
Profit before income tax (PBT) 713.8 731 5911 731
Income tax (217.4) (27.5) (180.6) (27.5)
" it after income tax attributable to shareholders of the parent entity 496.4 45.6 41055 45.6
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Concise Financial Report.

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2007

Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies

AGL Energy Limited (parent entity) is a company limited by shares,
and incorporated in Australia, whose shares are publicly traded on
the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX).

The financial report includes the consolidated financial statements
which comprise the parent entity and its controlled entities
(together referred to as the consolidated entity). This financial
report does not include all the notes of the type normally included
in an annual report.

Note 1{a) — Basis of preparation

The Concise Financial Report has been prepared in accordance with
the Corporations Act 2001 and Accounting Standard AASB 1039
‘Concise Financia! Reports”. The Concise Financial Report, including
the financial statements and specific disclosures included in the
Congcise Financial Report, has been derived from the Full Financial
Report of the consolidated entity.

A full description of the accounting policies adopted by the
consolidated entity is provided in the 2007 financial statements
which form part of the Full Financial Report.
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Note 1(b) - Change in accounting estimates

There were no material changes in accounting estimates during
the year ended 30 June 2007.

Note 2 - Subsequent events

On 2 July 2007, AGL acquired the 1,280 MW Torrens Island
gas-fred power station (TIPS} for $417 million, including all
development gas storage and transportation rights, and sold

its 180 MW gas-fired peaking plant at Hallett for $117 million
resulting in a net payment by AGL for TIPS of $300 million. As part
of the transaction, AGL also acquired a 10-year, 300 PJ, gas-sales
agreement expiring in 2017, together with the associated SEA

Gas Pipeline haulage contract which expires in 2019.

On 13 July 2007, AGL announced the signing of a 330 P}
faundation gas-transportation agreement with Epic Energy which
will further enhance gas portfolic flexibility and competitiveness.




Notes to the financial statements
For the year eanded 30 June 2007

2007 ($m) 2006 ($m)
Note 3 — Revenue and expenses
{a) Revenue consisted of the following items:
Revenue from sales of goods 3,656.3 370.6
Revenue from rendering of services 109.0 13.6
3,765.3 384.2
(b} Expenses consisted of the following items: '
Cost of salas 29498 185.7
Fair value gain on electricity derivatives (414 .4} (43.5)
. 2,5354 142.2
Administration expenses 106.7 230
Employee henefits expense 1749 18.3
Other expenses; _
Demerger costs 58.2 -
Redundancy/restructure costs 333 -
Impairment of IT assets 227 -
Other 58.6 12.2
2,989.8 195.7
Note 4 — Dividends
Recognised omounts
Interim divider.d paid 22 March 2007 (2006 - nil)
Franked amount (9.5 cents per share) (2006 - nil cents per share) 358 -
Unfranked amount (nil cents per share) (2006 - nil cents per share) - -
Total amount {9.5 cents per share) (2006 - nil cents per share) 35.8 -
Unrecognised omounts
"~ posed final dividend to be paid 28 Septemmber 2007 @
Franked amount (26.0 cents per share} M7 -
Unfranked amount (nil cents per share) - -
Total amount (26.0 cents per share) 127 -
{2) The proposed hnal dividend in respect of crdinary shares for the year ended 30 June 2007 has not been
recognised in this financial report as the dividend was not declared on or before 30 June 2007,
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Concise Financial Report.

Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2007

Note 5- Segment information

Segment information is presented in respect of the consolidated

entity's business and geographical segments. The primary

format, business segments, is based on the consolidated entity’s
management and internal reporting structure. The consolidated
entity comprises three main business segments — Retail Energy,

Merchant Energy and Energy Investments.

Revenue is principally derived from:

(i) Retail Energy - sale of natural gas and electricity

(i} Merchant Energy — generation and sale of electricity and
wholesale sale of gas and upstream oil and gas investments

(i) Energy Investments — investments in energy entities

(iv) Inter-segment pricing is on an arms-length commercial basis.

Elimination
Retail Merchant Energy inter-segment )

Energy Energy Investmments revenue Unallocated Tota|
Business segments 2007 ($m) ($m) (3m) ($m) ($m) ($m)
Revenue 31748 5096 75.2 - 57 '3,765.3
Inter-segment revenue 7.6 1,479.8 - (1,487.4) - -

31824 1,989.4 75.2 (1,487.4) 5.7 3,765.3
Other income 01 294 - - 8.8 38.3
Segment revenue 31825 2,018.8 75.2 (1,487.4) 14.5 3,803.6
Segment EBIT result 1074 736.8 25.2 - (182.7) 686.4
Finance income 08 12.6 17.3 - 6.2 369
Finance costs - - - - (132.2) {132.2)
Profit before income tax 107.9 749.4 425 - (308.7) 5911
Income tax expense (1 80.6)
Profit after income tax 410.5
Segment assets 3,2247  9,903.8 629.2 - 3498  14,107.5
Segment liabilities 540.8  4,529.5 51.7 - 2,467.9 7,589.0,
Other segment information
Significant items of expense 22.0 5.9 09 - 939 1227
Share of proﬁt’s‘ of a5§ociates an§ jointly _ 334 137 _ _ 361
controlled entities using the equity method
Carryi.ng value cf investments accounted 09 3334 200.4 - - 534.4
for using the equity method
Acquisition of non-current assets 1,104.3 1,016.8 18 - 49.2 21721
Depreciation and amortisation 13.0 1209 43 - 253 1635
Impairment losses - 05 - - 227 232
Other non-cash expenses 31.5 91 0.7 - 7.0 483
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year 2nded 30 June 2007

Note 5- Segment information (continued)

Elimination
Retal  Merchant Energy inter-segment
Energy Energy Investments revenue Unallocated Total
Business segments 2006 {$m) ($m) {$m) {$m) ($rm) ($m)
Revenue 257.4 126.8 - - - 384.2
Inter-segment revenue 47 - - (4.7 - -
2621 126.8 - 4.7) - 384.2
~*“her income - 27 - - 0.2 2.9
. -gment revenue 2621 129.5 - (4.7) 0.2 3371
Segment EBIT result 251 115.1 - - (0.6) 139.6
Finance incoms 7.5 23 - - - 9.8
Finance costs - - - - (76.3) {76.3)
Profit before income tax 326 117.4 - - (76.9) 731
Income tax exoense (27.5)
Profit after income tax 45.6
Segment assets 152.7 2,821% ~ - 9.2 2,983.0
Segment liabilities 175.7 658.5 - - 2,018.8 2,8%3.0
Other segment information
Significant items of expense - - - - - -
Share of profits of associates and jointly
controlled entities using the equity method h - B - - B
Carrying value of investments accounted
for using the equity method N h - N h -
Acquisition of non-current assets 0.1 21318 - - - 21319
Papreciation end amortisation 0.2 51.0 - - 0.6 31.8
- Jgirment losses - - - - - -
Other non-cash expenses 2.3 1.0 - - - 33

Geographical segments

The consclidated entity’s geographical segments are determined based on the location of the consolidated entity’s assets.

External revenues

Acquisition of

and other income Assets non-current assets
2007 ($m) 2006 ($m) 2007 ($m) 2006 {$m) 2007 (3m) 2006 ($m)
Australia 3,497.2 3010 13,393.6 2,342 21249 1,600.0
Papa New Guinea 23439 861 545.0 641.8 459 5319
Other 715 - 168.9 - 1.3 -
3,803.6 3871 14,107.5 29830 2,721 21319
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Concise Financial Report.

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2007

Note 6- Remuneration of auditors

2007 2006
$000 $o0c0
Auditors of the Parent Entity '
Audit and review of financial reports ;795 297
Other regulatory audit services 32 -
Investigating Accountants Reports for share placement prospectus 100, -
Audit and review of Certified Working Capital Staterents for demerger <252 =,
Review of Directors forecasts for AGL Supplementary Scheme booklet K 21 -
AGL redaction process assistance ) %‘1_36' -
11,336 297
Other auditors t
Audit and review of financial reports ' 39 -

The Auditor of AGL Energy Limited is Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

Other auditors includes international associates of Deloitte Touche Tobmatsu Australia.

Note 7 ~ Change in composition of entity

AGL Energy Limited demerger

On 26 April 2006, The Australian Gas Light Company and Alinta
Limited agreed to merge their respective infrastructure businesses.
The Australian Gas Light Company and Alinta Limited subsequently
signed a Relationship Deed dealing with transitional and commercial
issures arising from the proposed implementation of an AGL Scheme
of Arrangement and an Alinta Scheme of Arrangement.

On 6 October 2006, The Australian Gas Light Company and Alinta
Limited shareholders approved the merger of AGLS infrastructure
assets with Alinta and the subsequent separation of AGL Energy
Limited as a separate listed entity. This was subsequently approved
by the Federal Court of Australia on 9 October 2006, and AGL
Energy began trading on a deferred settlement basis on the
Australian Securities Exchange on 12 October 2006.

On 25 October 2006, AGL Energy Limited successfully separated
from The Australian Gas Light Company. In preparation for the
transaction a nurnber of internal restructuring transactions took
place whereby AGL Energy Limited acquired 100% of the issued
capital of certain entities from The Austrahian Gas Light Company.

The entities were acquired during the current and preceding pericds
for consideration equal to the book value of the underlying net assets
of the entities acquired and settled via intergroup payables which
were subsequently converted to share capital (see Note 12 in the Full
Financial Report). This transaction is not reflected in the cask: flow
statement. The aggregate book value of the net assets acquired by
AGL Energy Limited was $561 million (2005: $18 millicn).
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The following pro-forma financial information has been calculated
based on and assuming the entities involved in the separation were
subsidiaries for the entire 12 month periods ended 30 June 2006
and 30 June 2007.

- 2007 2006
$m $m

Revenue 4,773.9 3,890.0‘ .
EBIT 902.6 5520
Net profit after tax 552.3 401.0

Acquisition of Sun Gas Retall

QOn 1 February 2007, the consolidated entity acquired 100% of

the issued capital of Sun Gas Retail Pty Ltd from the Queensland
Government, for $74.2 million including costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of $2.5 million. The business included approximately
70,800 residential and industrial and commercial gas customers
located primarily in south-east Queensland.

From the date of acquisition, the business has contributed $3.8
million to operating profit before finance costs and income tax. Itis
not practical to determine the proft or revenue for the consolidated
entity as if the acquisition had taken place at the beginning of the
year due to the complexity in the managerent of the gas portfolio
and the level of history available from which to determine and
anzlyse seasonality.




Notes to the financial statements
For the year anded 30 June 2007

Note 7 — Change in composition of entity (continued)

Acquisition of Powerdirect

-0On 1 March 2007, the consolidated entity acquired 100% of the
issued capital of Powerdirect Australia Pty Ltd and Powerdirect Utility
Services Pty Ltd from the Queensland Government, for $1,234.0
million including costs directly attributable to the acquisition of $5.8
million. The business included approximately 473,200 residential,
small-to-medium enterprise and industrial and commercial electricity
custoemers located primarily in south-east Queensland.

.m the date of acquisition, the business has contributed $20.0
million to operating profit before finance costs, income tax and

mark-to-market adjustments on derivative instruments. It is nat
practical {o determine the profit or revenue for the consolidated
entity as if the acquisition had taken place at the beginning of the
year because AGL manages its electricity price risk as a portfolio.
This means that the electricity hedging transactions undertaken
by AGL prior to the acquisition of Powerdirect would have been
different had it owned Powerdirect. Furthermore, it is not possibte
to determine the electricity hedging contracts that existed within
Powerdirect as of 1 July 2006 but had expired prior to the
acquisition date.

The provisional fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of each acquisition as at the respective dates of acquisition are:

Sun Gas Retail Powerdirect Total
fair value on acquisition fair vatue on acquisition fair value on acquisition
2007 {($m) 2007 ($m) 2007 {$m)
Assets
Trade and other receivables 26.2 196.0 2222
Inventores 0.1 08 09
Other assets - 18 19
Other financial assets - 2223 2223
Property, plant and equipment 0.4 495 499
Intangible assets 46.9 236.2 2331
736 7067 780.3
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 19.0 2226 2416
Borrowings 4.4 241 28.5
"+her financial liabilities - 701 701
wvisions 0.4 18 2.2
238 3186 3424
Fair value of identifiable net assets 498 3881 4379
Goodwill on acquisition 244 8459 870.3
74.2 1,234.0 1,308.2
Consideration
Cash paid including directly attributable costs 74.2 1,234.0 1,308.2
Less net cash acquired - {0.7) (0.7)
Net cash outflow 74.2 1,234.7 1,308.9

The deferred tax assets and deferred tax habilities in the financial statements of the Sun Gas Retail and Powerdirect entities at the time of
acquisition refate to temporary differences which ceased to exist when these entities transitioned from Queensland Government ownership
and the National Tax Equivalent Regime to being members of the AGL Energy Limited tax-consolidated group.

Subject to the finalisation of the provisional acquisition accounting, all identifiable intangible assets have been recognised separately from
goodwill. Goodwill arises from various portfolio benefits that will arise from integrating the activities of the Powerdirect and Sun Gas Retail
businesses with that of AGL. The acquisition has augmented AGLs position as the largest energy retailer in Australia and enhanced its
competitive position by reducing average cost per account across the entire retail business. The addition of a Queensland retail portfolio
base wilt support future generation developments and participation in any future privatisation of generation facilities in Queenslang.

AGL Concise Annual Report 2007

45




Audit.

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of AGL Energy Limited

Report on the Concise Financial Report

The accompanying Concise Financial Report of AGL Energy Limited comprises the balance sheet as at 3¢ June 2007, the income statement,
statement of recognised income and expenses and cash flow statement for the year then ended and related notes, derived from the audited
financial report of AGL Energy Limited for the year ended 30 June 2007. The Concise Financial Report does not contain all the disclosures required
by the Australian Accounting Standards.

Directors’ Respansibility for the Concise Financial Report

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Concise Financial Report in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB
1039 Concise Financial Reports, and the Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation of the Concise Financial Report; selecting and applying appropriate accounting poficies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Concise Financial Report based on cur audit procedures. We have conducted an independent
audit, in accardance with Australian Auditing Standards, of the financial repart of AGL Energy Limited for the year ended 30 June 2007. Our audit’
report on the financial report for the year was signed on 14 September 2007 and was not subject to any modification, The Australian Auditing
Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasanable assurance whether the financial report for the year is free from material misstatement.

Our procedures in respect of the Concise Financial Report included testing that the information in the concise fimancial report is derived from,
and is consistent with, the financial report for the year, and examination on a test basis, of evidence supporting the amounts and other disclosures
which were not directly derived from the financial report for the year. These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion whether, in all
material respects, the Concise Financial Report camplies with Accounting Standard AASB 1039 Concise Financial Reports.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

independence
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corparations Act 2001.

Auditor’s Opinion
In our opinion, the concise Ainancial report of AGL Energy Limited for the year ended 30 June 2007 complies with Accounting Standard AASB
1039 Concise Financial Reports.

/72:—4-7.‘."..“,;;1_.,‘.‘, e Eomaar P

-~
DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU G Couttas, Partner

Chartered Accountants, Sydney, 14 September 2007
Deloitte. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.

Auditor’s Independence Declaration to AGL Energy Limited

In accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, | am pleased to provide the following declaration of independence
to the Directors of AGL Energy Limited.

As lead audit partner for the audit of the financial statements of AGL Energy Limited for the year ended 30 June 2007, | declare that
to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of:

W the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and
] any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the review,

Yours faithfully,

/4(,.45_7:.-44_;/‘;‘ gy s :, M‘?"‘

-
DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU G Couttas, Partner

Chartered Accountants, Sydney, 14 September 2007
Deloitte. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professicnal $tandards Legislation.
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Shareholding information.

The following information is provided regarding the Issued Capital of AGL as at 20 August 2007:
1. The Issued Capital consisted of 433,555,467 fully-paid erdinary shares each entitled to one vote.

There were 112,760 holders of these ordinary shares.

2.
3. There were 1,045 holders of less than a marketable parcel of 32 shares.
4,

The distribution of holders was:

No. of holders %

1 - 1,000 shares 56,133 43,78
1,001 - 5,000 shares 47,839 42.43
5,001 - 10,000 shares 5,806 515
10,001 - 100,000 shares 2,856 253
100,001 shares and over 126 oM
112,760 100

5, The location of holders was:

_ catlon No. of holders % No. of shares %
Australia 108,837 96,52 424 857113 94.00
USA and Canada 479 0.43 380,511 0.09
United Kingdom N 0.29 376,267 0.09
New Zealand 2,909 2.58 7.440,26% 1.72
Others 204 018 491,315 0.10

112,760 100 433,555,467 100

6. The class of holders was:
Class of holder No. of holders % No. of shares %
Individuals 62,238 55.20 115,298,321 26.59
Companies and other 50,522 44.80 318,257,146 73.41
112,760 100 433,555,467 100

7. The twenty largest holders held 41.66% of the Issued Capital:
Twenty largest holders as at 20 August 2007

Fully-paid ardinary shares

% of total issued shares

HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited 41,805,281 9.64
National Nominees Limited 39,899,744 9,20
J P Morgan Nominees Australia 28,506,619 6,58
icorp Nominees Pty Limited 18,112,553 418
" ANZ Nominees Limited 8,805,761 203
Cogent Nomirees Pty Limited 6,769,489 1.56
Queensland Investment Corporation 4,804,732 1.1
Australian Foundation Investment Company Limited 4,326,991 1.00
RBC Dexia Invastor Services 3,765,262 0.87
AMP Life Limited 3,575,120 0.82
Invia Custodian Pty Limited 3,557,153 0.82
Suncorp Custodian Services Pty Limited 2,433,680 0.56
Argo Investments Limited 2,393,787 0.55
UBS Wealth Management Australia Nominees Pty Ltd 2,218,694 0.5
Austrafian Rewsard Investment 2,214,552 0.51
Bond Street Custodians Limited 2163,297 0.50
Custodial Services Limited 1,465,526 0.34
Questor Financial Services Limited 1,455,986 0.34
Gwynvill Investments Pty Limited 1,263,150 D.29
Milton Corporation Limited 1,075,060 0.25
180,612,434 41.66
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Shareholder information.

Share Registry

Shareholders with enquiries
about any aspect of their
shareholdings are invited to
contact AGL's Share Registry
as follows:

AGL Share Registry

Link Market Services Limited
Level 12, 680 George Street
Sydney New South Wales 2000

(Postal Address: Locked Bag
A14, Sydney South New South
Wales 1235)

Tel: 1800 824 513
(within Austratia)
+61 282807115
{International)

Fax: 02 9287 0303
{within Australia}
+61 29287 0303
{International)

Email: aglenergy@
linkmarketservices.com.au
www.linkmarketservices.com.au

When communicating with the
Share Registry, it will assist if
yOu ¢an quote your current
address together with your
Security Reference Number
(SRN) or Holder Identification
Number (HIN} as shown on
your Issuer Sponsored/CHESS
statements.

The Final Dividend

The final dividend of 26.0

cents per share, 100% franked,
will be paid on Friday 28
September 2007. Shareholders
may nominate a bank, building
society or credit union account
within Australia for the payment
of dividends for direct credit.
Payments are electronically
credited on the dividend
payment date and confirmed by
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a mailed or electronic payment
advice. Payment instructions
¢an either be lodged online or
an appropriate form can be
downloaded from the Share
Registry's website,

AGLs Dividend Reinvestment
Plan has now been activated,
Shareholders who lodged
applications by 6 September
2007 will participate for the
final dividend.

AGL website

The AGL website address is:
www.agl.com.au. If you visit
the ‘Share Registry and ‘Access
your Shareholding’ pages,
located in the Investor Centre
of the AGL website, you can
also check the share price and
graphs, check your current
holding balances, download

a variety of instruction

forms, subscribe to email
announcements and efect to
receive electronic dividend
statements.

Reporting to Shareholders
Recent changes to the
Corpoerations Act 2007 mean
that AGL need only provide
shareholders with access to this
Annual Report on AGL's website,
unless they have specifically
requested to be sent a printed
or electronic copy. AGL has
elected this year to continue

to provide printed copies to

all shareholders unless they
have specifically requested
otherwise. Shareholders seeking
a copy of the Full Financial
Report should subscribe ornline
or contact the Share Registry.
The Full Financial Report is
published within the AGL Full
Annual Report 2007 and is also
available on the AGL website.

Change of name, address or
banking details

Shareholders who are issuer
sponsored should advise the
Share Registry immediately of
a change of name, address or
banking details for dividends
electronically credited to a
bank account. All such changes
rmust be advised online or

in writing and cannot be
accepted by telephone. For a
change of name, supporting
documentation must

accompany your written advice.

Appropriate forms can also be
downloaded from the Share
Registry's website.

Shareholders who are CHESS
sponsored should instruct their
sponscring broker in writing to
notify the Share Registry of
any change.

Tax File Number (TFN) /
Australian Business Number
(ABN)

It is not compulsary to provide
a TFN or ABN. However AGL
will be required to deduct tax
at the top marginal rate from
the unfranked portion of any
dividend paid to shareholders
who have not provided either
a TFN/ABN or details of a
relevant TFN exemption.

TFN/ABN notification forms can

be obtained by contacting the
Share Registry, lodging your

details online or by downloading

the appropriate form from the
Share Registry's website.

Consolidation of
Shareholdings
Shareholders who wish

to consolidate multiple
shareholdings into a single
shareholding should advise
the Share Registry or their
sponsoring broker, whichever
is applicable, in writing.

Registered Office

AGL, 72 Christie Street,

St Leonards New South Wales
2065, Australia

Tel: 02 9921 2999
{within Australia)
+61 29921 2999
{International)

Company Secretary
Paul McWilliams ACA, MApFin
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Directory of offices.

Head Office

AGL Energy Limited
72 Christie Street
St Leonards NEW 2065

Tel: 029921 2999
Fax: 02 9921 2552

Merchant Businesses

Sydney
72 Christie Street
St Leonards NSW 2065

Tel: 02 9921 2999
Fax: 02 9921 2552

Melbourne
120 Spencer Street
Melbourne VIC 3000

Tel: 03 8633 6000
Fax: 03 8633 6002

Canberra
ActewAGL House

Level 5, 221 London Circuit

Canberra City ACT 2601

Tel: 131 245
Fax: 1300 660 245

Brisbane

Level 31, Comalco Place
12 Creek Street
Brisbane QLD 4000

Tel: 07 3023 2461
Fax: 07 3228 8126

Adelaide
226 Greenhil Road
Fastwood SA 5063

Tel: 1300137 245
Fax: 1800 654 337

Retail Energy

Sydney
72 Christie Street
St Leanards NSW 2065

Tel: 02 9921 2999
Fax: 02 9921 2552

Melbourne
120 Spencer Street
Melbourne VIC 3000

Tel: 03 8633 6000
Fax: 03 8633 6002

Canberra
ActewAGL House

Levet 5, 221 London Circuit

Canberra City ACT 2601

Tel: 02 6248 4001
Fax: 02 6248 4016

Brisbane

Level 31, Comalco Place
12 Creek Street
Brisbane QLD 4000

Tel: 07 3023 2495
Fax: 07 3229 7621

Adelaide
226 Greenhill Road
Eastwood 5A 5063

Tel: 1300137 245
Fax: 1800 654 337

Chile

Vina del Mar

AGL Chile Operations
Caming Internacional 1420
Refiaco Alto

Vifia del Mar, Chile

South America

Tek 0011 56 32 2277000
Fax: 0015 56 32 2277280




Important dates.

31 August 2007; Shares began trading ex-dividend.
06 September 2007: Record date for final dividend.
28 September 2007:  Final dividend payable.

08 November 2007:  Annual General Meeting.
The Annual General Meeting of AGL
will be held in the City Recital Hall
commencing at 10.30am.
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ASX

ASX Limited
Facsimile ASTRALIAN SECUNTIES XCHARE ABN 98 008 624 691
20 Bridge Street
To Company Secretary SydneygNSW 2000
Company AGL ENERGY LIMITED
PO Box H224
Fax number 0299212552 Australia Square
From ASX Limited - Company Announcements Office NSW 1215
Date 27-Sep-2007 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Time 08:33:34 www.asx.com.au
Subject Confirmation Of Receipt And Release Cf Announcement DX 10427 Stock Exchange
Number of pages 1 only Sydney
MESSAGE:

We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

AGL Proxy Appointment Form 2007 AGM

IFASX conskders an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be hailted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is ¢assRled by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed info “pre-open” staturs on ASX's tmding system. This means that
trading in your company's securities i temporarily sippped, i allow the market ime to assess the contents of your announcement "Pre-open” is approximately
10 minutes for mestanmouncements but can be 50 minutes (appreximately) for keover announcements.

Once “pre-open” pariod is completed, Lill rading of the company’s securities recommences.
PLEASE NOTE:

In accomiance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory bb elodge annaancements tsihg ASX Online.
Fax is available for emergency pumoses and costs AS33.50 (ncl. GST). The only fax number to use is 1300 999279,
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Toll free: 1800 824 513

From outside Australia: +51 2 8280 7115

Facsimile; (02) 9287 0309

APPOINTMENT OF PROXY ASX Code: AGK

I you would like to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, please

Website: www.linkmarketservices.com.au

www.linkmarketservicas.com.au

bring this form with you. This will assist in registering your attendance. You can also lodge your vote on-fine at

X99999599999

I/We being a member(s} of AGL and entitled to attend and vote hereby appoint

REIRARAIIOEY

the Chairman OR if you are NOT appointing the Chairman of the
of the Meeting Meeting as your proxy, please write the name of the
(mark box) person or body carporate {excluding the registered
securityholder) you are appointing as your proxy

_.or failing the person/body corparate named, or if no person/body corporate is named, the Chairman of the Meelting, as myfour proxy to act generally at
- the meeling on myfour behalf and to vote in accordance with the following instructions {or if no directions have been given, as the proxy sees fit) at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 10:30am on Thursday, 8 Novembar 2007, at the City Recital Hall, Ange! Place, Sydney and at any

adjournment of that mesting.

Where more than one proxy is to be appointed or where voting intentions cannot ba adequately expressed using this form an additional form of proxy is
available on request from the share registry. Proxies will only be valid and accepted by the Company if they are signed and received no later than 48 hours

before the meeting. The Chairman of the Mesting intends to vote undirected proxies in favour of all items of business.

E To direct your proxy how to vote on any resolution please insert [E in the appropriate box below.

. For  Against Abstain® For  Against Abstain®

§:5°t't:h;" 2 ton Resorl Resolution 3(c)

Opt e Remuneration Repor Re-elect Mr B Phillips as a Director
{advisory only)

" Resolution 3(a) Resolution 4
Re-glect Mr M R G Johnson as a Director Approve the issue of 56,550,000 shares
Resolution 3(b) Resofution5
Re-elect Mr M G Ould as a Director Approve Financial Assistance of the
Company’s Subsidiaries

IMPORTANT: FOR RESOLUTION 4 ABCVE
If the Chairman of the Meeting is appointed as your proxy, or may be appointed by default and you do not wish to direct your
proxy how to vote as your proxy in respect of Resolution 4 above, please place a mark in this box, By marking this box, you

acknowledge that the Chairman of the Meeting may exercise your proxy even though he has an interest in the outcome of that
Resolution and that votes cast by him for that Resolution, other than as proxyholder, would be disregarded because of that
interest. If you do not mark this box, and you have not directed your proxy how to vote, the Chairman of the Meeting will not cast
your voles on Resolution 4 and your votes will not be counted in calculating the required majority if a poll is called on this
Resolution. The Chairman of the Meeting intends to vote undirected proxies in favour of Resolution 4.

* If you mark the Abstain box for a particular Resolulien, you are directing your proxy not to vole on your behalf on a show of hands or on a poll and your votes will not be
counted in computing the required majority on a poll.

B SIGNATURE OF SECURITYHOLDERS - THIS MUST BE COMPLETED
Securityholder 1 {Individual) Joint Securityholder 2 (Individua) Joint Securityholder 3 {Individual)
Sole Director and Sole Company Secrefary  Director/Company Secretary (Delete one) Director

This form should be signed by the securityholder. If a joint holding, either securityholder may sign. If signed by the securityholder's attorney, the power of attorney must have
been previously noted by the regisiry or a certified copy attached fo this form. If executed by a company, the form must be executed in accordance with the securityholder's
constitution and the Corporations Act 2001 (Cwith).

Link Market Services Limited advises that Chapter 2C of the Corporations Act 2001 requires information aboul you as a securityholder {including your name, address and
details of the securities you hold) to be included in the public regisler of the entity in which you held securilies. Information is collected to administer your securityhalding and
if some or all of the information is not collected then it might ot be possible to administer your securityholding, Your personal information may be disclosed to the entity in
which you hold securities. You can obtain access to your personal information by confacting us at the address or telephone number shown on this form. Qur privacy palicy is
available on our website (www.linkmarketservices.com.au).

AGK PRX742

AR RGOSR A




Your Name and Address

This is your name and address as it appears on the company's share register. If this information is incorrect, please make the correction
on the form. Shareholders sponsored by a broker should advise their broker of any changes. Please note: you cannot change ownership
of your shares using this form,

Appointment of a Proxy

If you wish to appoint the Chairman of the Meeting as your proxy, mark the box in section A. If the person you wish to appoint as your proxy
is someone other than the Chairman of the Meeting please write the name of that person in section A. If you leave this section blank, or
your named proxy does not attend the meeting, the Chairman of the Meeting will be your proxy. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the
company. A proxy may be an individual or a body corporate.

Votes on ltems of Business

You should direct your proxy how to vote by placing a mark in one of the boxes opposite each item of business. All your shares will be voted
in accordance with such a direction unless you indicate onty a porticn of voting rights are to be voted on any item by inserting the percentage
or number of shares you wish to vote in the appropriate box or boxes. If you do not mark any of the boxes on the items of business, your
proxy may vote as he or she chooses. If you mark mare than one box on an item your vote on that item will be invalid.

Appointment of a Second Proxy

You are entitlied to appoint up lo two persons as proxies to attend the meeting and vote on a poll. If you wish to appoint a second proxy, an
additional Proxy Form may be cbtained by telephoning the company's share registry or you may copy this form.

To appoint @ second proxy you must:

(a) on each of the first Proxy Form and the second Proxy Form state the percentage of your voting rights or number of shares applicable
to that form. If the appointments do not specify the percentage or number of votes that each proxy may exercise, each proxy may exercise
half your votes. Fractions of votes will be disregarded.

{b) return both forms together.

Signing Instructions
You must sign this form as follows in the spaces provided:

Individual: where the holding is in one name, the holder must sign.
Joint Holding: where the holding is in more than one name, either securityholder may sign.

Power of Attorney: to sign under Power of Attorney, you must have already lodged the Power of Attorney with the registry. If you have nol
previously lodged this document for notalion, please attach a certified photocopy of the Power of Attorney to this form
when you retumn it. .

Companies; where the company has a Sole Director who is atso the Sole Company Secretary, this form must be signed by that
person. If the company (pursuant to section 204A of the Corporations Act 2001) does not have a Company Secretary,
a Sole Director can also sign alone. Otherwise this form must be signed by a Director jointly with either another Director
or a Company Secretary. Please indicate the office held by signing in the appropriate place.

If a representative of the corporation is to attend the meeting the appropriate "Certificate of Appointment of Corporate Representative™ should
be produced prior to admission. A form of the certificate may be obtained from the company’s share registry.

Lodgement of a Proxy

This Proxy Form (and any Power of Attorney under which it is signed) must be received at an address given below by 10:30am on Tuesday,

6 November 2007, being not later than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. Any Proxy Form received after that time will not

be valid for the scheduled meeting.

Proxy forms may be lodged using the reply paid envelope or:

by posting, delivery or facsimile to AGL's share registry as follows:
AGL

CI- Link Market Services Limited

Locked Bag A14

Sydney South NSW 1235

Facsimile: (02} 9267 0309

lodging it onfine at Link's website (www.linkmarketservices.com.au} in accordance with the instructions given there (you will be taken to
have signed your proxy form if you lodge it in accordance with the instructions given on the website);

delivering it to Level 12, 680 George Street, Sydney NSW 2000.




ASX

ASX Limited
Facsimile AUSTRALIAN SECIRITIES PCHANGE ABN 98 008 624 691
20 Bridge Street
To Company Secretary Sydney NSW 2000
Company AGL ENERGY LIMITED
Fax number 0209212552 PO Box H224
Australia Square
From ASX Limited ~ Company Announcements Office NSW 1215
Date 27 Sep-2007 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Time 08:33:16 WWW.asX.COm.au
Subject Confirmation Of Receipt And Release Of Announcement
DX 10427 Stock Exchange
Number of pages 1 only Sydney
MESSAGE:

We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

AGL Notice of AGM 2007

I ASX considers zn announcement to be sensitive, trading will be haltad for 10 minutes.

If your anmouncement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company's securities wil ba placed into “pre~open” statius on ASX's trading system. This means that
trading in your company’s sacurities is lemporarily stopped, to aliow the market tima to assass the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approximately
10 minutes for most announcements but can be 50 minutss (approximately) for takacver announcemants.

Once “pre-open” period is completad, full rading of the company's securities recommences.
PLEASE NOTE:

in accordance with Guidance Nots 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcemsnts using ASX Online.
Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (inel. GST). The only fax number to use is 1900 999 279,




AGL Energy Limited
ABN 74115061 375

72 Christie Strest
St Leonards NSW 2065

Notice of Annual General Meeting of shareholders

27 September 2007
Dear shareholder,

I am pleased to invite you to attend the 2007 Annual General Meeting of shareholders (AGM),
which has been scheduled as follows:

Date:  Thursday, 8 November 2007
Time:  10.30am (Sydney time)
Venue:  City Recital Hall, Angel Place, Sydney

A map and transportation instructions (whether travelling by train, bus, car or taxi) follow,
for your information.

The business to be deatt with at the AGM is provided on pages 3 & 4 of this Notice of Meeting.

If you are able to attend the AGM, please bring the enclosed proxy form with you to facilitate
registration at the AGM.

If you do not plan on attending the AGM, you are encouraged to appoint a proxy ta attend and vote
on your behalf by lodging your proxy appeintment online at www.linkmarketservices.com.au
or by completing the enclosed proxy farm and returning it in the envelope provided.
Instructions on how to appoint a proxy are detailed on the back of the proxy form. Proxies must
be received no later than 10 30am (Sydney time} on Tuesday, 6 Novernber 2007 to be valid for
the AGM. Proxies may be lodged online or returned by mail or by fax on 02 9287 0309.

You are encouraged to fet us know of any questions you may have before the AGM. Details of
how to lodge those questions prior to the AGM are on the last page of this Notice.

We look forward to seeing you at the AGM.

Yours sincerely

Mﬂ‘w

Mark Johnson
Chairman




How to find the City Recital Hall

You can use the map below to find the nearest transport routes and the location

of the Meeting - the City Recital Hall, Angel Place, Sydney NSW.
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The City Recital Hall
is a short walk from
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By Bus
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walking distance.
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Ordinary Business

1. Toreceive and consider the Financial Report of the Company and the consolidated
entity and the Reports of the Directors and Auditor for the financial year ended
30 June 2007.

2. Toadopt the Remuneration Report for the financial year ended 30 June 2007, as set
out in the Directors’ Report section of the Annual Report. (Note — the vote on this
resolution is advisory only and does not bind the Directors or the Company.}

3. Toelect Directors:

{a)  To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ordinary
resolution;

‘That Mr M R G Johnson, a Director who retires by rotation at the close of the
Meeting in accordance with Clause 58 of the Company’s Constitution and being
eligible, is re-elected as a Director of the Company.”

(by  To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ordinary
resolution:

‘That Mr M G Quld, a Director who retires by rotation at the close of the
Meeting in accordance with Clause 58 of the Company’s Constitution and
being eligible, is re-elected as a Director of the Company.’

() Toconsider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ordinary
resclution:

‘That Mr B Phillips, a person who has been appointed as a Director in accordance
with Clause 56.1 of the Company’s Constitution, be re-elected as a Director of
the Company in accordance with Clause 56.2 of the Company’s Constitution.’

Special Business

4. Approval of a placement of fully-paid ordinary shares by the Company in the last
twelve months:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ordinary
resolution:

‘That for the purposes of fisting rule 7.4 of the Listing Rules of ASX Limited,
approval is given to the issue of 56,550,000 fully-paid ordinary shares in the
Company on 27 February 2007 made by way of placement.’

AGL Notice of Annual General Meeting 2007




5. Approval of financial assistance by certain of the Company’s subsidiaries in connection
with the acquisition of the Sun Gas, Powerdirect and Torrens Island Power Station
businesses.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a special

resolution:

‘That, for the purposes of section 260B(2) of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth),

approval is given for the financial assistance to be provided, from time to time,

by the following subsidiaries of the Company:

)] AGL Sales (Queensiand) Pty Limited ACN 121 177 740 in connection
with the Sun Gas Acquisition”;

{b) Each of AGL Energy Services {(Queensland) Pty Limited ACN 104 759
471, AGL Sales (Queensland Electricity) Pty Limited ACN 078 875 902,
Austrafian Energy Ltd ACN 083 783 028 and Powerdirect Pty Limited
ACN 067 609 BO2 in connection with the Powerdirect Acquisition™;

(c)  Eachof AGL SA Generation Pty Limited ACN Q81 074 204, AGL Torrens
Isfand Pty Limited ACN 081 074 197 and AGL Torrens Island Holdings
Pty Limited ACN 071 611 017 in connection with the TIPS Acquisition’,
and

(d)  Anyother subsidiary of any of the Targets* if required in the future,
each as described in the Explanatory Notes to the Notice of Meeting.

* Defined in the Explanatory Notes to the Notice of Meeting.’
By Order of the board

1l

Paul McWilliams

Company Secretary
27 September 2007

Determination of entitlement to vote

For the purpose of the Meeting, the Directors have determined that shares will be taken
to be held by persons reqistered as shareholders as at 7.00pm (Sydney time) on Tuesday,
6 November 2007.




Voting exclusion

The Company will disregard any vote cast on Item 4 by any shareholder of the Company who
participated in the issue made by way of placement on 27 February 2007 and by any asscciate
of any such shareholder.

However, the Company will not disregard a vote cast on item 4 if:

(i) itis cast by a person as a proxy for a person who is entited to vote in accordance
with the directions an the proxy form; or

(i) it is cast by the Chairman of the Meeting as proxy for a person who is entitled to vote
in accordance with the directions on the proxy form to vote as the proxy decides.

Proxies

Each shareholder may appeint a proxy, who need not be a shareholder, to attend and vote at
the AGM on the shareholder’s behalf. A shareholder whois entitled to attend and cast two or
more votes at the Meeting may appoint two proxies and may specify the proportion or number
of vates each proxy is appointed to exercise on a poll. If the shareholder appoints two proxies
and the appointment does not specify the proportion or number of the shareholder's votes
that each may exercise, each may exercise half of the votes (disregarding fractions) on a pall.

A proxy form and, if not signed by the shareholder, the power of attorney or other authority
(if any} under which the proxy formis signed {or a certified copy of that power of attorney
or other authority) must be received by the Company at least 48 hours before the time for
holding the Meeting - that is, by 10.30am (Sydney time) on Tuesday, 6 November 2007,
Documents may be lodged with the Company by:

{i) appointing a proxy online at the AGL Share Registry site www.linkmarketservices.com.au;
ar

(ity posting them in the accompanying reply-paid envelope to Link Market Services Limited,
Locked Bag A14, Sydney South NSW 1235; or

{it) sending themn by fax to the AGL Share Registry on {(02) 9287 0309; or

{iv) delivering them to the AGL Share Registry located at Link Market Services Limited,
Level 12, 680 George Street, Sydney NSwW 2000.

Corporate representatives

A company wishing to appoint a person to act as its representative at the meeting must
provide that person with a letter executed in accordance with the company’s constitution
and the Corporations Act authorising him or her to act as the member’s representative.

AGL Natice of Annual General Meeting 2007



Ordinary Business

Item 1
To receive and consider the Financial, Directors’ and Auditor’s Reports for the
financial year ended 30 June 2007

The AGL Concise Annual Report 2007 has been sent to shareholders (other than those

who have elected not to receive it or to receive the AGL Full Annual Report 2007). The AGL
Fult Annual Report 2007 has been sent to those shareholders who have requested it. Both
Reports can be found on the Company’s website (www.agl.com.au) under ‘Investor Centre'.
During discussion of this item, there will be an opportunity for shareholders to ask questions
about, or comment on, the Reports and the management and performance of the Company.

Item 2

Adoption of the Remuneration Report for the financial year ended 30 June 2007
The Company is required under the Corporations Act 2007 (Cth} to include, in the business
of its Annual General Meeting, a resolution that its Remuneration Report for the financial
year ended 30 June 2007 be adopted. The resolution is advisory only and does not bind the
Directors or the Company. During discussion of this item, there will be an opportunity for
shareholders to ask questions about, or comment on, the Remuneration Report.

The Remuneration Report is set out in the Directors’ Report section of the AGL Concise
Annual Report 2007 and the AGL Full Annual Report 2007. The Remuneration Report:

sets out the Company’s policy in respect of remuneration paid to the board,
the Managing Director and senior executives;

explains how Directors’ fees are determined within the aggregate limit approved
by shareholders;

describes the elements of remuneration paid to the Managing Director and senior
executives, the links to Company and individual performance and the criteria used
to assess performance; and

sets out the remuneration details for each Director and nine specified executives.
The Directors recommend that shareholders vote in favour of Item 2.



item 3
Election of Directors

{(8) Mark Johnson LLB MBA Age: 66
Term: Non-executive Director and Chairman since 17 February 2006.
Independent: Yes,

Committees: Chairman of the People and Performance, and Health,
Safety and Environment Committees.

Directorships: Chairman of Macquarie Infrastructure Group
(commenced as a Director in 1996). Mark is also Chairman of the
Australian Strategic Policy Institute and Chairman of the APEC
Business Advisory Council.

Experience: Previously non-executive Deputy Chairman of Macquarie Bank Limited
(commenced as a Director in 1987 and retired on 19 July 2007), a Director of Pioneer
International, Sydney Futures Exchange, the Victor Chang Cardiac Research Institute and
Chairman of The Australian Gas Light Company (commenced as a Director in 1988 and retired
on 25 October 2006).

The Directors {excluding Mr M R G Johnson) recommend that shareholders vote in favour
of Item 3(a).

(b} Max Ould Bec Age: 60
Term: Non-executive Director since 17 February 2006.
Independent; Yes.

Committees: Member of the People and Performance, and Health,
Safety and Environment Committees,

Birectorships: Chairman of Goodman Fielder Limited {commenced
in 2005 and appointed Chairman in September 2006). Director of
Pacific Brands Limited (commenced in 2004} and Foster’s Group
Limited (commenced in 2004).

Experience: Previously he was Managing Director of National Foods Limited and a Director of
The Australian Gas Light Company {commenced in 2004 and retired on 25 October 2006),
The Directors {excluding Mr M G Ould) recommend that shareholders vote in favour

of Item 3(b).
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{(c) Bruce Phillips Bsc (Hons) Age: 52
Term:; Non-executive Director singe 23 August 2007,
Independent: Yes.

Committees: Member of the Health, Safety and Environment
Committee.

Directorships: Managing Director of Australian Worldwide
Exploration Limited (AWE) (commenced in 1997 and retired on
31 August 2007).

Experience: Previously Business Development Manager of Command Petroleurm and
Consulting Energy Advisar to Prudential-Bache Securities. Bruce f5 a petroleum industry
expert with more than 30 years of technical, financial and managerial experience in the
upstream sector of the petroleumn industry, He founded and managed AWE, was chief
technical advisor to Petroleum Securities Australia Limited, and was an expert advisor to
News Corporation Limited.

The Directors (excluding Mr B Phillips) recommend that shareholders vote in favour
of Item 3(c).

Special Business

Item 4
Approval of a placement of fully-paid ordinary shares in the Company made in the
last twelve months.

The Company is seeking the approval of shareholders, for the purposes of listing rule 7.4 of
the Listing Rules of ASX Limited ('ASX Listing Rules'), in respect of the issues of shares that
has been made by the Company in the fast twebve months set out in the following table:

Terms of | Use of the funds
shares raised

Reason for the issue Date of issue | No. of
and persons to whom

shares

issued issued

the issve was made

Issued under an 27/02/2007 56,550,000 $1650  Fully-paid To partiafly fund the
institutional placement ordinary acquisition of

10 persons nominated shares Powerdirect Australia

by Goldman Sachs JB Pty Ltd and Powerdirect
Were, J P Morgan and Utility Services Pty Ltd
UBS, who acted as joint from the Queensland
lead managers and Governiment for a total
underwriters for the consideration of $1,234
placerment. million.



The shares issued rank equally with other existing fully-paid ordinary shares in the Company
(except that they were not entitled to the interim divicend of 9.5 cents per share dedlared
for the period to 31 Decermnber 2006).

What is the effect of listing rule 7.1?

In general terms, listing rule 7.1 of the ASX Listing Rules imposes a 15% cap on the number
of shares that can be issued by the Company, without approval of shareholders or ASX
waiver, in any twelve manth period (15% limit). However, the Company is permitted to
issue shares (or other securities) in excess of the 15% fimit if thase shares are issued in
reliance on an exception to listing rule 7.1 or the issue is approved by shareholders or an
ASX waiver is obtained.

Why is the Company seeking approval for the issues of shares?

The effect of the proposed approval by shareholders of item 4 wou!d be that the shares set
out in the table, that have been issued by the Company in the last twelve months, will not
count toward the 15% limit. A consequence of approval is that the share issues which are
approved will increase the number of shares from which the 15% limit is calculated.

The Directors do not currently have any specific intention to make an issue of shares prior to
28 February 2008 without approval of shareholders under listing rule 7.1, unless the issue
falls under an exception to the 15% rule in listing rule 7.2. However, the Directors consider
that it is appropriate and prudent for approval to be sought at the Meeting, in respect of
the relevant issues of shares in the last twelve months, as this approval will enhance the
Company's flexibility to finance strategic transactions through raising equity capital, should
the Directors consider that it is in the best interests of the Company to do so. If this approvai
is not given at the Meeting, the Company may need to incur the costs and delay of convening
a special general meeting of the Company during the period up to 28 February 2008, if the
Directors propose ta issue securities which do not fall under an exception to the 15% rule in
listing rule 7.2.

The Compary is seeking the approval of shareholders, for the purposes of listing rule 7.4, in
Itern 4, so that the issue will not count towards the 15% limit. The Directors believe that it is
in the best interests of the Company that the Directors maintain their ability to issue up to
15% of the issued capital of the Company in the period up to 28 February 2008, Listing rule
7.4 enables shareholders to subsequently approve the issue of such shares for the purposes
of listing rule 7.1,

The Directors unanimously recommend that shareholders vote in favour of Item 4.
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Item 5

Approval of financial assistance by certain of the Company’s subsidiaries in
connection with the acquisition of the Sun Gas, Powerdirect and Torrens tsland
Power Station businesses.

Background

On 24 October 2006 {but amended subsequently), the Cormpany entered into the following
debt facilities to fund the general corporate purposes of the Company and its subsidiaries
{AGL Group):

a $1,900.000,000 subscription agreement (Subscription Agreement) between, the
Company (as the Borrower), The Royal Bank of Scotland plc ABN 30 101 464 528 and

Westpac Banking Corporation ABN 33 007 457 141 (as the Mandated Lead Arranger and

Underwriter), the financial institutions listedin Part Il of Schedule 1 to the Subscription
Agreement (as the Lenders) and Westpac Banking Corporation (as the Agent); and

a $500,000,000 revolving facility agreement (Revolving Facility Agreement) between
the Company (as the Borrower), The Royal Bank of Scotland plc ABN 30 101 464 528

and Westpac Banking Corporation ABN 33 007 457 141 (as the Mandated Lead Arranger

and Underwriter), the financial institutions listed in Part Il of Schedule 1 to the Revolving
Facility Agreement (as the Lenders) and Westpac Banking Corporation (as the Agent).

On 27 June 2007, the Company entered into a $300,000,000 bridge facility agreement
(Bridge Facility Agreement) between the Company (as the Borrower), the subsidiaries of
the Company fisted in Part | of Schedule 1 to the Bridge Facility Agreement (as the Original
Guarantors) and JPMorgan Chase 8ank, N.A., Sydney Branch ABN 43 074 112 011 and

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited ABN 11 005 357 522 (as the Lenders). The
Bridge Facility Agreement was entered into to fund, directly or indirectly, the acquisition of the

Torrens Island Power Station Target (defined below) and any transaction costs incurred by the
Company in connection with such acquisition.

The borrawer under each of the facilities is the Company. The Subscription Agreement,
Revolving Facility Agreement and Bridge Facility Agreement (Facility Agreements) charge
interest and include events of default and undertakings {including negative pledges and
undertakings not to dispose of assets), representations and warranties from the Company
consistent with facilities of the nature granted or as required by the lenders in the particular
circumstances. The Facility Agreements also require the Company to ensure that certain
subsidiaries of the Company (determined by ‘guarantor tests’ in the Facility Agreements) are
guarantors in respect of the facilities (Guarantor Undertaking),

The AGL Group has made the following acquisitions (Acquisitions) in the past twelve months:
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AGL Sales Pty Limited ACN 090 538 337 has purchased the entire issued share capital
of AGL Saltes (Queensland) Pty Lirnited ACN 121 177 740 {Sun Gas Target) under an
agreement dated 25 November 2006 (Sun Gas Acquisition);

AGL Sales Pty Limited ACN 090 538 337 has purchased the entire issued share capital of
each of AGL Energy Services (Queensland) Pty Limited ACN 104 759 471 and AGL Sales
{Queensland Electricity) Pty Limited ACN 078 875 302 (each a Powerdirect Target) under
an agreement dated 16 February 2007 (Powerdirect Acquisition); and

AGL Sales Pty Limited ACN 090 538 337 has purchased the entire issued share capital of
AGL Torrens Island Holdings Pty Limited ACN 071 611 017 (Torrens !sland Power Station
Target or TIPS Target) under an agreement dated 1 July 2007 (Torrens Island Power
Station Acquisition or TIPS Acquisition).

On completion of each of the Acquisitions, each of the Sun Gas Target, Powerdirect Targets
and TIPS Target (each a Target} and its subsidiaries {(each Target and its subsidiaries referred
to as a Target Group) became subsidiaries of the Company. Funds drawn under the Facility
Agreements were used to fund part of the purchase price for sorme or all of the Acquisitions. In
accordance with the ‘quarantor tests’in the Facility Agreements, the Company is now required
to ensure that the members of the Target Groups referred to in paragraphs (a) to (d) of the
propesed resolution {Target Guarantors} become guarantors of the Facility Agreements.

Restrictions on companies giving financial assistance

Section 260A(1) of the Corporations Act provides that a company may financially assist a
person to acquire shares in the company or a holding company of the company if the assistance
is approved by shareholders under section 2608 of the Corporations Act.

Appraoval by the shareholders of the Target Guarantors has already been given. However, under
section 2608 of the Corporations Act, if immediately after the acquisition, the comparny will

be a subsidiary of another carporation which is listed in Australia {Listed Australian Holding
Company), the financial assistance must also be approved by a speciat resotution of the holding
company. Because the Company is the Listed Australian Holding Company of the Target
Guarantors, shareholders of the Company are asked to approve the giving of financial assistance.

A company may be regarded as giving finencial assistance if it gives something needed in order
that a transaction be carried out or something in the nature of aid or help. Cormimon examples of
financial assistance include issuing a debenture, giving security over the company’s assets,

and giving a quarantee or indemnity in respect of another person's liabifity. The giving of
guarantees (and the undertaking of the other obligations described below) by the Target
Guarantors in respect of the Facility Agreements would give financial assistance to the Company
and hence to the purchaser referred to abave in connection with the relevant acquisitions.

AGL Notice of Annuai General Meeting 2007
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Current Guarantees

The facilities under the Subscription Agreement are currently guaranteed by certain of the
subsidiaries of the Company (Initial Guarantors). The Initial Guarantors entered into a

Deed of Guarantee and Indemnity dated 24 October 2006 (Subscription Agreement
Guarantee). Under the Subscription Agreement Guarantee, in addition to the guarantee and
indemnities included in that document, the Initial Guarantors give representations, warranties
and undertakings which are substantially similar to those given by the Company under the
Subscription Agreement.

The facilities under the Revolving Facility Agreement are currently quaranteed by the Initial
Guarantors. The Initial Guarantors entered into a Deed of Guarantee and Indemnity dated

25 October 2006 (Revolving Facility Agreement Guarantee). Under the Revalving Facility
Agreement Guarantee, in addition to the guarantee and indemnities included in that document,
the Initial Guarantors give representations, warranties and undertakings which are substantially
similar to those given by the Company under the Revolving Facility Agreement,

The facilities under the Bridge Facility Agreernent are currently guaranteed by the Initial
Guarantors. The guarantee and indemnities given by the Initial Guarantors are included in the
Bridge Facility Agreement which the Initial Guarantors, together with the Company, executed
on 27 June 2007. Under the terms of the Bridge Facility Agreement, the Initial Guarantors
also give representations, warranties and undertakings which are substantially simifar to those
given by the Company.

Accession to the Guarantees

It is proposed that, in order for the Company to comply with the Guarantor Undertakings
under the Subscription Agreement, the Revolving Facility Agreement and the Bridge Facility
Agreement, the Target Guarantors accede as guarantors to each of the Subscription
Agreement Guarantee, the Revolving Facility Agreement Guarantee and the Bridge Facility
Agreement pursuant to:

{a) aguarantor accession letter under the Subscription Agreement Guarantee;

(b) a guarantor accession letter under the Revelving Facility Agreement Guarantee; and
(c) aquarantor accession letter under the Bridge Facility Agreement,

(each a Subsidiary Deed of Accession).

Upon execution of each of the Subsidiary Deeds of Accession, the Target Guarantors would
(among other things) become bound by the guarantees, indemnities and undertakings and
give the representations and warranties referred to above.
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In addition, the Target Guarantors may, or may be required to:
subordinate intercompany claims;

transfer assets to, or assurne other liabilities of, the Company or other subsidiaries or
related parties of the Company;

make available directly or indirectly their cash flows (whether through dividends, capital
distributions, intercompany loans or otherwise) or other resources in order to enable the
Company and the other guarantors to comply with their payment and other obligations
in respect of the Subscription Agreement, the Subscription Agreement Guarzantee, the
Revolving Facility Agreement, the Revolving Facility Agreement Guarantee, the Bridge
Facility Agreement and all other related documents (Finance Documents),

consent or agree to amendments to the financing decuments, including amendments that
make their obligations more onerous;

provide additional suppert which may include incurring additional obligations and/or
providing additional guarantees on the same or different terms to the Subscription
Agreement Guarantee, the Revolving Facility Agreement Guarantee and guarantee
contained in the Bridge Facility Agreement (Guarantees); and

provide other financial assistance in connection with the Acquisitions including, without
limitation, in connecticn with any refinancing,

Other subsidiaries of the Targets may in the future also provide or be required to provide
financial assistance in connection with the Acquisitions in the same form as that to be provided
by the Target Guarantors or in another form.

Future Financial Assistance

The resolution proposed would, if passed, also approve the giving of financial assistance by
other subsidiaries of the Targets if required in the future, Where financial assistance is required
to be given by such subsidiaries of the Targets in the future, the approval of shareholders of the
refevant subsidiaries under section 260B(1) of the Corporations Act will be sought at that time.

Reasons for giving financiat assistance

The reason for the giving of the financial assistance described above is to enable the Company
to comply with certain of its obligations under the Finance Documents, namely the Guarantor
Undertaking set out in each of the Facility Agreements.

If such obligations are not complied with an "Event of Default’ will occur under the Facility
Agreements and the funding under the Facility Agreements may be required to be repaid.

AGL Notice of Anaual General Meeting 2007
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Effect of financial assistance

As the Company is afready liable for the amounts payable under the Finance Documents,
the giving of the financial assistance described in this mermorandum by each of the Target
Guarantors is unlikely to have any adverse effect on the Company.

The substantial effect of the financial assistance on the Target Guarantors is that each
Target Guarantor will have guaranteed all amounts payable under the Finance Documents.
The operations of the Target Guarantors will also be restricted by the representations and
undertakings given by them under the Guarantees.

The Directors of the Company do not currently believe that the Company, any of the Initial
Guarantors or any of the Target Guarantors are likely to default in their obligations under the
Finance Documents.

Advantages of the proposed resolution

The advantage to the Company of the proposed resolution is that the Target Guarantors will be
able to accede to the Guarantees and so allow the Company to meet the quarantor tests under
the Facility Agreements mentioned above and avoid the occurrence of an Event of Default. If an
Event of Default occurs, the financiers may require immediate repayment of the amounts due
under the Finance Documents. The Directors of the Company believe that the utilisation of

its existing corporate facilities under the Subscription Agreement and the Revolving Facility
Agreement is, or was, the most efficient form of financing available to finance, in part, each of
the Acquisitions and that the utilisation of the bridge facility under the Bridge Facility Agreerment
is, o was, the most efficient form of financing available to finance, in part, the TIPS Acquisition.

The principat advantage of the proposed resolution to the Target Guarantors is that the
Company will be able to maintain its ownership of the Target Group. The Directors of the
Company believe that this is in the interests of the Target Guarantors because:

the Target Guarantors will have greater access to funding in the bank and capital markets
as a result of integration in the AGL Group;

the Target Guarantors will benefit from synergies, cost savings and greater growth potential
through that integration with the AGL Group; and

the Target Guarantors will be able to retain existing management expertise and will have
access to new management expertise provided by the Company and its affiliates,

The Directors of the Company believe that approving the financial assistance described above
is in the interests of the Company.
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Disadvantages of the proposed resolution

As the Company is already liable for the amounts due under the Finance Documents, the
Directors of the Company do not believe there are any disadvantages to the Company of the
proposed resolution,

The disadvantages of the proposed resolution for the Target Guarantors include the following:
(a} they will becomne liable for the amounts due under the Finance Docurments;

(b) their operations wilt be restricted by the representations and undertakings given by them
under the Guarantees;

(¢} although the Directors consider this unlikely, the Company may default under the Finance
Docurnents; and

(d) the financiers may then make a demand under the guarantees provided by the Target
Guarantars requiring immediate repayment of the amounts due under the Finance
Documents, which may result in a winding up of the Target Guarantors.

Passing the Financial Assistance Resolution
The resolution proposed is proposed as a special resolution and will be passed if 75% of the
votes cast by sharehalders are in favour of the resolution.

Prior notice to Australian Securities & Investments Commission

As required by section 260B(5) of the Act, copies of the Notice including these Explanatory
Nates, as sent to the shareholders, were lodged with the Australian Securities & Investments
Commission prior to their dispatch to shareholders.

Disclosure

The Directors consider that these Explanatory Notes contain all information known to the
Company that would be material to the shareholders in deciding how to vote on the proposed
resolution other than infarmation which it would be unreasonable to require the Cormpany to
include because it has been previously disclosed to the sharehalders of the Company.

Recommendation
The Directors unanimously recommend that the shareholders vote in favour of Item 5
to approve the giving of financial assistance.

AGL Notice of Annual General Meeting 2007
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Questions from shareholders

AGL Energy Limited (AGL} aims to ensure that Annual General Meetings and the Annual
Report meet shareholders’ expectations. Your views are essential to this,

If you would fike further information on AGL, or would like to ask a question to AGL or the
Auditor at this AGM, you may lodge your questions online by visiting the AGL Share Registry's
website www.linkmarketservices.com.au or by completing the enclosed form and returning
itin the enclosed reply paid envelope.

Questions for the AGM should be refevant to the business of the Meeting, and may include

questions refating to the financial or other statutory reports or the motions before the -

Meeting, or general questions on AGL's management or performance, or questions to the
Auditor concerning the content of the Auditor’s Report or the conduct of the audit.
Questions for the AGM (including written questions to the Auditor) must be
received at any of the addresses below by 5.00pm {Sydney time} on Thursday,
‘t November 2007.
The Chairman of the Meeting will answer as many of the frequently asked questions as
possible. The AGM will be webcast live at www.agl.com.au and a copy of the Chairman's
speech will be available on the AGL website.
In accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), shareholders will also be given
a reasonable opportunity, as a whole, to:
ask questions about, or make comments on, the management of the Cormpany
and on the Remuneration Report, at the Meeting; and
ask the Auditor questicns relevant to the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the Auditor's Report, the accounting policies adopted by the Company
and the independence of the Auditor, at the Meeting.
If you would like to make a suggestion or comment on the Annual Report, please

advise the Company in one of the following ways (this will allow us to incorporate your views -

into the content and design of future Annual Reports);
Online at the AGL Share Registry’s website www linkmarketservices.com.au

Write to the AGL Share Registry or Company Secretary by completing the enclosed form
and sending it to the Share Registry in the enclosed reply paid envelope to: Link Market
Services Limited, Locked Bag A14, Sydney South NSW 1235;

or post to: Company Secretary, AGE Energy Limited, Locked Bag 1837, St Leonards NSW 2065
Fax to the AGL Share Registry on fax number 02 9287 0309.
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